












 

Acme Township 
6042 Acme Road | Williamsburg, MI | 49690 

Phone: (231) 938-1350   Fax: (231) 938-1510   Web: www.acmetownship.org 

                        
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE            
ACME TOWNSHIP 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that  

The Regular Board Meeting has been scheduled on  
 

Tuesday, November 10, at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81026860773 

 
Meeting ID: 810 2686 0773 

 
One tap mobile 

+13017158592,,86466644118# US (Germantown) 
+13126266799,,86466644118# US (Chicago) 

 
Dial by your location 

+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

+1 929 436 2866 US (New York) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 

Meeting ID: 810 2686 0773 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcRODwlk2 

http://www.acmetownship.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81026860773
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcRODwlk2


If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

                ACME TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

          ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

                6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

               Tuesday, November 10. 2020, 7:00 p.m. 
 

 

UGENERAL TOWNSHIP MEETING POLICIES 

A.       All cell phones shall be switched to silent mode or turned off. 

B.       Any person may make a video, audio or other record of this meeting. Standing equipment, 

             records, or portable microphones must be located so as not to block audience view. 

 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

ROLL CALL  

     

A. LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Public Comment periods are provided at the beginning and end of each meeting agenda. Members of the public 

may address the Board regarding any subject of community interest during these periods. Comment during 

other portions of the agenda may or may not be entertained at the moderator’s discretion.  

 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

 

C.      APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES:  Regular Board meetings  09/01/20, 10/06/20  

       and Special Board 09/29/20 

 

D.        INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: 

 

E.         REPORTS 

  a.    Clerk - Dye 

               b.    Parks –  

               c.    Legal Counsel –  

               d.    Sheriff – 

               e.    Supervisor- 

               f.    County –  

                              

F.       SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: Annual Audit presented by Baird, Cotter & Bishop, P.C. 

    

G.      CONSENT CALENDAR: The purpose is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items 

           together for one Board motion (roll call vote) without discussion. A request to remove any item for 

           discussion later in the agenda from any member of the Board, staff or public shall be granted. 

 

          1.     RECEIVE AND FILE: 

a.  Treasurer’s Report  

b.  Clerk’s Revenue/Expenditure Report and Balance Sheet Report 

c.  North Flight September report 

d.  RecycleSmart October 2020 

          2.      APPROVAL:  

          Accounts Payable Prepaid of $67,740.89 and Current to be approved of  

                    $34,304.83 (Recommend approval: Clerk, C. Dye) 

 

H. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 1.        

2.        

3.        

 

 

 



If you are planning to attend and are physically challenged, requiring any special assistance, please notify Cathy Dye, Clerk, within 24 
hours of the meeting at 938-1350. 

 

I.      CORRESPONDENCE: 

       

  

J.  PUBLIC HEARING:      

 

K.  NEW BUSINESS: 

1.  Notification and Consent to Assignment of Ambulance Agreement to Mobile Medical   

Response 

2.  USDA Community Facility Loan Fire Station 8 Construction October 2020 Update 

3.  Supervisor’s Appointment to fill Board of Review vacancy 

4.  2% Tribal Council Application to build the first segment of the Nakwema Trailway 

 

M.    OLD BUSINESS:           

          1.    Update  on Recreational Marihuana  

 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD:  

 

 

ADJOURN 
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              ACME TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

          6042 Acme Rd., Williamsburg MI 49690 

Remote Zoom Meeting  

  Tuesday, September 1, 2020 7:00 p.m. 
 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE at 7:05 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL: Members present: D. White, C. Dye, A. Jenema, J. Aukerman, P. Scott, D. Nelson,  

D. Hoxsie 

Members excused: none 

Staff present: J. Jocks, Legal Counsel, L. Wolf, Planning & Zoning Administrator, V. Donn, Recording 

Secretary  

   

A. LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: Open at 7:06 pm 

 

Carl Andres, 3390 Scenic Hills Dr., commented on the deterioration of the roads in the Scenic Hills 

Subdivision and the need for reconstruction on them. He supports SAD project.  

 

Brian Kelley, Acme resident, voiced his concerns with the easement on the KOTI development for 

the TART Trail crossing on sensitive wetland areas. (letter submitted) 

 

Matthew Koeplin, 3219 Kirkridge Dr., is concerned with the easement for the TART trail near the 

wetlands and supports SAD for the subdivision. 

 

Greg Klinger, 6669 E.M72, Redbud Roots, thanked the board for the meeting on adult use 

recreational marihuana in the township. He would like any feedback and the board’s input for 

consideration by the zoning committee to explore adult recreational marihuana use in the township. 

  

Bill Fahl, 3288 Michaels Dr., supports fixing the roads in Scenic Hills subdivision. 

 

Public comment closed at 7:12 pm 

 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

 

Motion by Aukerman to approve the agenda as presented, supported by Nelson.  Roll call 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

C. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES: Regular meeting 8/11/20 and Special meeting 8/20 

Aukerman noted there is edits needed for the 8/11/20 meeting under K. New Business, 3. Township 

Donation CCAT, comment on the natural looking pond was made by Rachelle Babcock not Michelle 

Rohn and the comment on to keep the donation for a future project was Denny Rohn not Michelle 

Rohn.  

 

Motion by Aukerman to approve the Board meeting minutes of 8/11/20 with edits as noted and 

Special meeting 8/20 as presented, supported by Scott.  Roll call motion carried unanimously. 

 

D. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None 

 

E. REPORTS 

 a.    Clerk: Dye reported Valerie Donn, Recording Secretary, has moved out of the area and will 

         need to be replaced. She will continue to do the minutes on Zoom until there is a replacement.  

         Dye would like the board’s permission to start looking for a new candidate to do the minutes.   
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   Motion by Nelson to authorize Dye to pursue replacing Valerie Donn for Recording Secretary,  

               supported by Hoxsie. Roll call motion carried unanimously.   

          

 b.    Parks: Jenema reported the Parks & Trails August meeting was cancelled, the information on 

         the playground equipment had not been received yet. Lindsey Wolf and Ryan Lamott are doing  

         a layout and getting dimensions for the equipment.   

 

 c.    Legal Counsel – Jocks reported on the status of the Engle Farm matter. He was waiting on the  

        Attorney General to do a draft, but it was continuously delayed. He offered to draft it and gave  

        to the Attorney General to review and resolve. He understands there was a concern on having  

        Peter Lepczyk for $2,000 review the information related to the restrictive covenant from the  

        Acme Shell Minimart. Peter said he could review it for $500.  

 

 Motion by White to add this to the agenda under L. Old Business, 3. Acme Shell Minimart  

 review, supported by Dye. Roll call motion carried unanimously.  

 

 d.    Sheriff: No report 

 

    e.    Supervisor: White informed he is working on the SAD district process. There has been a  

                       request from another township to buy the old speed trailer sign that has been stored in the Yuba  

                       pole barn. He asked Jocks since it is township property if it can be sold? Jocks informed it can’t  

                       be donated but could be sold at the fair value amount with the board’s approval.  

                       White is estimating the cost to be $300.  

 

           Scott request to have the money from the sale go to recurrent fees for the current speed sign 

                       they are using. 

 

Motion by Nelson to approve selling the speeding sign at the fair value price, supported by 

Hoxsie. Roll call motion carried unanimously.  

 

    f.     County: G. LaPointe reported the new TC Senior Center will not be on the November ballot.  

                       The city and county could not agree on terms.   

 

The County Commission on Aging would like the contract with the PACE Organization to 

expire at the end of this year. It was discussed by the commissioners with the majority in favor 

to let the contract expire. There has been minimal use for their service.  

 

There was an audit of the jails mental and health care for inmates. The findings were the 

county is doing a good job in helping with the inmate’s release, pointing them in the right 

direction for services available to them. Mental health for inmates while in jail scored low.  

      

F.        SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: J Chris DeGood & Tim Knutsen (Beckett & Raeder) – Acme 

Connector Trail 

 
Chris DeGood gave the status of the connector trail that runs along the railroad, crossing Holiday Inn 

property, Mt. Hope Road, along M72, by Samaritas, across Acme Creek and to Acme Center. It will 

connect to existing trails to make it extend from one end of the township to the other. 

 
Casey Ressl with TART trails, informed the section that stops at Bunker Hill Road will be put in as 

well as areas on the route replaced.   

 

 Chris touched on the process starting with stakeholder meetings along the trail route to develop plans,  

             concerns, and any infrastructure that needed to be implemented. They are submitting to EGLE for  

             wetland and stream crossings to start the trail next year. They have met with MDOT Rail and  

             submitted for their approval to bring the trail along the tracks. He went over each segment and how 
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             each will be developed.  

 

 He explained the section by Acme Creek will have a decking product to cross over. There will not be  

             any filling to the wetlands or impact to the creek.  The original conceptional plan on the KOTI  

             development had a steep sloop instead they will create a switchback which starts just above the creek  

             grade and slowly ascends to even out to a 4-5% climb. It will pitch the rainwater from the trail away  

             from the creek. This leads to the KOTI project which they have agreed to provide an easement and  

             help develop a trail across their property. As phase plans gets developed, they will be obligated to 

             further the trail.             The trail will be pavement with some sections of gravel. 

 

 Chris stated the wetland setbacks are relative to structures and to site developments, so they apply to 

              the zoning ordinance. Whereas this trail is a piece of public infrastructure that crosses  

              environmental sensitive areas and encroaches upon what are setbacks for development purposes for a  

              zoning standpoint. This doesn’t apply to this piece of infrastructure in the same way the structures 

              and decks do in the KOTI development. It is not practical to use decking up a paved trail for the  

             climb there would be no traction.  

  

G.       CONSENT CALENDAR: 

              1.    RECEIVE AND FILE: 

 a.  Treasurer’s Report  

 b.  Clerk’s Revenue/Expenditure Report 

 c.   RecycleSmart Newsletter August 2020 

               2.  APPROVAL:  

       1. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $45,267.59 and Current to be approved of $67,095.25  

        (Recommend approval: Clerk, C. Dye) 

 

Dye requested to have under 2. Approval, 1. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $45,267.59 and Current to 

be approved of $66,645.25 removed. 

 

Motion by Dye to approve the Consent Calendar with the removal of 2. Approval, 1. Accounts Payable 

Prepaid $45,267.59 and Current to be approved of $66,645.25, supported by Nelson.  Roll call motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

H.       ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR:  

Under 2. Approval, 1. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $45,267.59 and Current to be approved of 

$66,645.25. 

 

Dye explained there needs to be an increased amount for Current to be approved for an invoice that 

came in of $450 from Breg Well Drilling making Accounts Payable Prepaid $45,267.59 and Current 

to be approved of $67,095.25.   

 

Motion by Dye to approve the Consent Calendar of 2. Approval, 1. Accounts Payable Prepaid 

$45,267.59 and Current to be approved of $67,095.25, supported by Scott.  Roll call motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

I.      CORRESPONDENCE:  Submitted by Brian Kelly dated 9/1/20 

             

J.      PUBLIC HEARING: Chief Pat Parker- 2021 Metro Fire Budget and 2021 Milage 

 Proposal 3.025 mills 

 Public Comment: None 
 White informed this is the same mills as last year for fire and ambulance. Board had previously 

discussed the budget regarding change for Police. For Police (0.25 mills), fire protection (2.45 mills MESA) 

and Ambulance of (.325) 
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Motion by Jenema, to approve Resolution #R2020-19 Establishing Emergency Services Special 

Assessment Levy for 2021 to support Grand Traverse Metro Emergence Services for Fire , Ambulance 

and Police total  3.025  mills, supported by Nelson. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

K.      NEW BUSINESS:  

1. DNR Development Project Agreement  

Jenema stated this is an agreement of funds for the TART trail called Nakwema Trailway. When 

signing it the township is only obliged for $75,000, the rest is from other donations as listed. All 

Funding has been received except from Iron Bell which needs to flow through Acme Township, 

this project could begin Spring 2021. 

 

Motion by Jenema to approve Resolution #R2020-20 for acceptance of the DNR Development Project 

Agreement on Nakwema Trailway for Dye to sign Resolution and White to sign Agreement, supported 

by Scott. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

L.      OLD BUSINESS:  

1.  1. Acme Township Yard Sale Ordinance  
Wolf submitted for the board to review and approve the draft for the township yard sale 

ordinance. It has also been reviewed by Jeff Jocks. . 

  

Motion by Jenema to approve the Acme Township Yard Sale Ordinance Resolution R#2020-01, 

effective in 30 days after being publish as adopted by Acme Township Board, supported by 

Aukerman. Roll call motion carried unanimously.   

 

2. Update on all Special Assessment   

White informed that he submitted payment to the County Road Commission to initiate the 

estimate for Springbrook SAD.  It will take 45 days to assess and comeback with an estimate of 

cost.  

Scenic Hills subdivision is also interested doing a SAD. Carl Andres gave a signature list from 

2017 of homeowners interested in SAD.  Carl will need a current (2020) signature list. It was 

recommended to have volunteers help with signatures and to submit at least 70-75% of the 

current owners that want the SAD for this to be successful.  White will help with getting names 

and addresses of the property owners.  Rick Conley (Springbrook) offered to help him through 

the process.  

 

       White has not heard from Hampshire subdivision at this time.   

 

3. Shell Minimart  

Jocks stated the $2,000 mentioned at the last meeting for Peter Lepczyk was an estimated not a 

flat fee. He could do a review of the documents and that would be $500. He suggested to have 

Peter start with a review of the documents to see what he learns from the historical data. He felt 

as the township board to pursue EGLE in addressing these issues it would be good to have an 

understanding on what they are dealing with. Peter can give his opinion of what he sees from the 

documents and what has changed over time. He can help with recommendations to the board to 

have a request to EGLE on how to approach cleaning up and contamination. The request made 

previously by Schmuckal was for the township to agree to the Restrictive Covenant over the 

property which would allow the contamination to dilute into the groundwater and disappear over 

time. Because it was not agreed to sign it, they are not going to be able to utilize that approach 

and will have to do something more. It may or may not have an impact on the township or park. 

Jocks feels there is value in having assistance with reviewing this issue.  

 

The consensus of the board was to have Peter do the review for $500.  

 

Motion by Nelson to authorize to hire Peter Lepczyk with Fishbeck for $500 to review the documents 

and advised with an opinion on the findings, supported by Scott. Motion carried unanimously 
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PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD: Opened at 

9:28 pm  

 

Carl Andres thanked the board and is looking forward to working with them on the project. 

 

Greg Hall gave an introduction of himself as a candidate for Sheriff. His website is gtsheriff.com.  

 

White informed he will put Recreational Use Marihuana on next month’s agenda. 

 

Public Comment closed at 9:33 pm  

 

ADJOURN:  Motion by Scott to adjourn, supported by Nelson. Roll call motion carried unanimously. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:34 pm. 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a document from the official records of the 

township.   

 

_______________________________ 

Cathy Dye, CMMC, Acme Township Clerk 
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                ACME TOWNSHIP SPECIAL ZOOM BOARD MEETING 

          ACME TOWNSHIP HALL 

                6042 Acme Road, Williamsburg MI 49690 

               Tuesday, September 29, 2020, 7:00 pm 

 

 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE at 7:02 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL: Members present: D. White, C. Dye, A. Jenema, J. Aukerman, P. Scott, D. Nelson,  

D. Hoxsie 

Members excused: none 

Staff present: V. Donn, Recording Secretary  

     

A. LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: Opened at 7:03 pm, no comments made 

 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  

 

Motion by Scott to approve the agenda as presented, supported by Hoxsie.  Roll call motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

C. NEW BUSINESS:  

1. Approval of Resolution R#2020-21 for Station 11 Remodel and Station 9 Floor repairs 

proposal 

                    

Chief Pat Parker informed he needs the board to approve the resolution to renovate Station 11 by 

adding living space for 24-hour personnel and to repair the floor. In addition, approval to have the 

drains and floor repaired for Station 9. Grand Traverse Construction gave the best bid for the 

project and they can start by mid-October. This will allow the trucks to park back into the station 

by December 1.   

 

Station 11 is a 43-year old station that was not built for full-time workers. The drains are failing 

and there are large chunks of concrete starting to break off creating hazards. At least two of the 

drains will soon be completely unusable. What were offices are now sleeping quarters that can 

only fit a bed and chair. They would like to have a dedicated workout space, currently the 

equipment is where other staff are trying to complete office or training duties. The plan is to turn 

one of the bays where a truck is to a dormitory for sleeping quarters, have a separate training area, 

redo the floor, and fix the restroom.  

 

Metro board has approved the remodeling project which includes repairs to floors at Station 9 for 

an amount not to exceed $700,000.  $350,000 will be financed and $350,000 will be paid from 

Metro’s Public Improvement fund. Station 11 remodel is projected to cost $625,000 and floor 

repairs for Station 9 estimated $75,000. The remodeling would give a useful life of 30 years. 

Metro intends to apply for financing from a bank institution for $350,000 with payment over a 

seven-year period. The project will cost Metro $54,000 for 7 years, the first payment is in the 2021 

budget which has been already approved and remainder six will need to be approved by the 

township board. No millage will need to be increased to do the project.  

 

 

He is asking for the township’s approval for financing this project for the next 7 years, by passing 

this resolution Acme, along with Garfield and East Bay are responsible for their portion should 

they leave Metro. Discussion followed regarding the Public Improvement fund that not all of it is 

being used for remodel of Station 9 & 11 because this fund could also be used to purchase 

property for Acme Fire Station 8. 
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The new Acme Fire station 8 would cost approximately over three million dollars for land and the 

building. A grant request for five million dollars has been written to the USDA for this project. It 

was decided to go high on the amount in case something went up in cost.  

 

 

Chef Parker informed they have looked at a low interest Government loan from USDA Rural 

Development loan program. This loan program will allow the cost of the new fire station up to 40 

years. He and supervisor Doug White have been looking at land. They have passed the first hurdle 

on the USDA loan and hopefully will hear something in the fourth quarter.    

 

Motion by Scott to approve Resolution R#2020-21 the remodeling of Station 11 and for the floor repair 

to Station 9 when the Metro Board approves the estimated $75,000 for the flooring is figured out, 

supported by Nelson. Roll call motion carried unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD:   

Opened at 7:41 pm 

 

Nelson commented on the public dump site at Bunker Hill and US-31 had broken glass and debris 

everywhere. BFI waste removal and the township’s maintenance have cleaned it up. The township put signs 

there to help keep the area clean. He is hearing comments by the public how much nicer it looks. He thanked 

the township for their help in cleaning the area.   

 

ADJOURN:  Motion by Scott to adjourn, supported by Jenema. Roll call motion carried unanimously. 

Meeting adjourned at 7:45 pm. 
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              ACME TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

          6042 Acme Rd., Williamsburg MI 49690 

Remote Zoom Meeting  

  Tuesday, October 6, 2020 7:00 p.m. 
 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE at 7:01 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL: Members present: D. White, C. Dye, A. Jenema, J. Aukerman, P. Scott, D. Nelson,  

D. Hoxsie 

Members excused: none 

Staff present: J. Jocks, Legal Counsel, L. Wolf, Planning & Zoning Administrator, V. Donn, Recording 

Secretary  

   

A. LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: Open at 7:06 pm 

 

Josey Ballenger, Traverse City, introduced herself she is running for a trustee position on the 

Traverse City Area Public Schools Board of Education.   
 

Joe Neller, Chief Government Affairs Officer and Co-founder of Green Peak Innovations based in 

Lansing, has a license for medical marihuana in Acme and urges the board to opt in for adult use 

recreational marihuana.   

 

Alex Leonowicz, Redbud Roots, would like the township to opt-in to adult recreational use 

marihuana. 

 

Patricia Scharf, 4252 5 Mile Rd, wants the board’s help with the garbage and junk problem in a 

resident’s yard on 5 Mile Rd.  

 

Greg Klinger, Redbud Roots, wants the township to opt-in to adult use recreational marihuana, it is 

critical for the survival and success of their business. 

 

Public comment closed at 7:19 pm 

 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

White stated there are additions to K. New Business 3. Assessor Grand Traverse County, 4. Junk 

Ordinance, 5. Correspondence from Tart Trail grant request 

 

Motion by Nelson to approve the agenda with the addition to K. New Business 3. Assessor 

Grand Traverse County, 4. Junk Ordinance, 5. Correspondence from Tart Trail grant request, 

supported by Hoxsie.  Roll call motion carried unanimously. 

 

C. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES: 09/01/2020  

 

Motion by Aukerman to approve the Board meeting minutes 09/01/2020 as presented, 

supported by Jenema.  Roll call motion carried unanimously. 

 

D. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None 

 

E. REPORTS 

 a.    Clerk: Dye reported they have currently sent out 1,842 ballots for the November election,  

        normally the count is around 700. The auditors are conducting the year end audit. The  

        financial statements will be presented at the next meeting for the board to review.  
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            The auditors pointed out the police fund expenses went over the budgeted amount. As  

                discussed in previous meetings, the millage had to be raised because the township was not  

                bringing in enough revenue to cover the expenses, the fund had been operating on the fund balance.  

                The auditors allowed a reallocation of $2,000 to the Police Fund and asked that the board be made 

                aware. Dye will have a report clarifying this for the board to review at the next meeting.  

      

 b.    Parks: No Report  

 

c.    Legal Counsel – Jocks reported the Engle complaint should be filed any day now it has gone 

       through the process with the Attorney General office.  

 

         Peter Lepczyk is working on the review for the park contamination. 

 

       Because of the Supreme Court’s order for Governor Whitmer, with the two statues she was  

       using for the executive orders for COVID-19, one was deemed unconstitutional and the other  

         had authority claim an emergency for 28 days, the legislation needs to reup the emergency 

         order. The new orders with the Department of Health and Human Services limits the number of  

       people allowed in a meeting, as of right now you can continue using Zoom. He is also working 

       on the zoning ordinance.  

 

d.    Sheriff: Brian Abbring informed for the month of September there had been 6 citations,  

       12 crashes and 2 arrests in the township. The township now has two portable battery speed  

       signs. They will be used until the end of the month and then put away for the winter. On  

       October 24 he will be working at the township for the Take Back Drug Day.   

 

   e.    Supervisor: White reported Northflight EMS is merging with MMR. He was told they are  

                      having a meeting that night. He will talk with them after to see if there are any changes for  

                      Acme Township and let the board know.  

     

  F.        SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: None  

  

  G.        CONSENT CALENDAR: 

                  1.    RECEIVE AND FILE: 

     a.  Treasurer’s Report  

     b.  Clerk’s Revenue/Expenditure Report 

     c.   RecycleSmart Newsletter September 2020 

                  2.   APPROVAL:  

           1. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $193,827.16 and Current to be approved of $9,995.57  

               (Recommend approval: Clerk, C. Dye) 

 

Jenema requested to have under 2. Approval, 1. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $193,827.16 and 

Current to be approved of $0 removed. 

 

Motion by Jenema to approve the Consent Calendar with the removal of 2. Approval, 1. 

Accounts Payable Prepaid $193,827.16 and Current to be approved of $0, supported by Hoxsie.  

Roll call motion carried unanimously. 

 

H.      ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR:  

Under 2. Approval, 1. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $193,827.16 and Current to be approved of 

$0. 

 

Jenema explained it should be 2. Approval 1. Accounts Payable Prepaid of $193,827.16 and Current 

to be approval of $9,995.57.  
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Motion by Jenema to approve the Consent Calendar of 2. Approval, 1. Accounts Payable 

Prepaid $193,827.16 and Current to be approved of $9,995.57, supported by Scott.  Roll call 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

I.      CORRESPONDENCE:   

1. Letter dated 08/24/20 from East Bay Township regarding intent to amend the Township’s 

Master Plan  

Wolf informed this is notification to inform East Bay Charter Township’s intent to amend their 

Master Plan. A copy of the draft plan will be provided for review and comments in advance to the 

township’s public hearing.  The process on the plan can be viewed on their website.   

 

2. Letter dated September 12, 2020, from various neighbors of property located at 4262 Five 

Mile Rd. regarding the nuisance junk situation 

3. Correspondence from Redbud Roots 

4. Letter dated 10/02/20 hand delivered by Jim Goss re: adult-use marijuana  

 

J.      PUBLIC HEARING: None 

 

K.      NEW BUSINESS:  

1. Supervisor’s Appointment to Parks & Trials   

White would like to appoint Matthew Morrison to the Parks & Trails Committee. 

 

Motion by Jenema to appoint Matthew Morrison to the Parks & Trails Committee to finish out 

the term for one-year ending June 30, 2021, supported by Aukerman.  Roll call motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

2. Local 911 Surcharge Ballot proposal Nov 2020 

Jason Torrey, 911 Director for Grand Traverse County, gave an overview on what will be 

proposed for the November ballot on the 911surcharge. 

 

3. Assessor Grand Traverse County Resolution #2020-22 

Jenema explained this was sent by the county for a designated assessor. Back in 2018 there was 

an assessing reform that the legislator was working on with a lot of modifications.  What came 

out of it for townships, is currently the AMAR. They come in and do an audit of the records every 

four years. The audit continuously changes throughout. If there are deficiencies, a township has a 

year to make the corrections. If the deficiencies are not made the State Tax Commission will step 

in and make sure the deficiencies get cured. This is how it exists today. Now instead of going 

through the State Tax Commission, there will be a designated assessor.  Half of the townships 

involved, need to approve of the assessor. James Baker with Grand Traverse County Equalization 

Director has been requested. A motion to approve the resolution is needed for White to sign the 

resolution of the approval.   

 

Motion by Nelson to approve James Baker as Designated Assessor Grand Traverse County 

Resolution #2020-22, supported by Aukerman.  Roll call motion carried unanimously. 

 

4. Junk Ordinance 

White explained the Sheriff was sent to the residence on 5 Mile and the owner does not answer 

the door. The appearance of the property is not a good situation. He has gotten with Jocks on 

revising the ordinance to try to rectify the problem.  

 

Jocks explained the junk ordinance was completed in 2005 and at that time the prosecutor or 

sheriff proposed to have junk and noise be across the broad with other township ordinances and 

there hasn’t been any changes since. Currently the way it is written states only the sheriff can 
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enforce the ordinance. Acme Township can’t do it on their own. He gave proposed revisions to 

the current ordinance. The board discussed the revisions presented by Jocks. 

 

Motion by Nelson to have Resolution R#2020-02, sections 1-3 remain the same, section 4 to 

allow zoning administrator to enforce, section 5 revision to allow the township to be able to go 

to court, last section to appeal the current and adopt the new ordinance, and correct the 

numbers to the sections, supported by Aukerman. Roll call motion carried unanimously.  

 

5. Letter from TART Trail to support for a Grant from TC Track Club 

White informed he was contacted by TART Trail for a letter of support for Traverse City Track 

Club for a grant of $7,500 dollars to go towards the connector trail.  

 

Motion by Jenema to support the request from TART Trail for a grant from the TC Track 

Club for $7,500 for the Tart Trail connector trail, supported by Aukerman. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

  

L.      OLD BUSINESS:  

1.  Discussion regarding Adult Use Recreational Marihuana. 

 White stated he asked Jocks to put together a memo on adult use marihuana for the board 

  to discuss. 

 
After many questions and discussion White  polled the board for consensus of working with the 

planning commission on the direction with limitations for the township to have adult use 

recreational marihuana (Scott no, Hoxsie yes, Aukerman yes, Nelson yes, Dye yes, Jenema yes, 

and White no) 

 

Jocks will research some models and ordinances for the board to explore.  

 

The board agreed to have a sub-committee give some direction first before going to the planning 

commission this will include Jocks, White, Jenema and Hoxsie to discuss and come back to the 

board. 

  

             2.   Special Road Assessment update 

White gave update on the SAD programs. Springbrook is ready for the township to mail out 

letters next week to property owners to reply for a tally of those in agreement for the SAD. He is 

waiting for  a reply from the County on Hampshire. Scenic Hills is working on their petition, 

received 75 responses back from 92 property owners. They are waiting for an additional five 

people to send back their approval.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT & OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD: 

 Opened at 9:43 pm  

 

Brian Kelley, Acme resident, stated he has spoken with Ag property owners, they expressed to him that large 

processing warehouses should go in industry districts and not in Agriculture zones.  

 

Patricia Scharf thanked the board for their help with the junk ordinance. 

 

 Public Comment closed at 9:45 pm  

 

ADJOURN:  Motion by Scott to adjourn, supported by Hoxsie.  Roll call motion carried unanimously. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:46 pm. 
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CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a document from the official records of the 

township.   

 

 

_______________________________ 

Cathy Dye, CMMC, Acme Township Clerk 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
To the Township Board 
Acme Township 
Grand Traverse County 
Williamsburg, Michigan 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Acme Township, Grand Traverse 
County, Williamsburg, Michigan as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Township’s basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents.   

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.   

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions.  
 
Emphasis of Matter – Change in Accounting Principle 
 
As discussed in Note 5 to the financial statements, Acme Township implemented Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this 
matter. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Acme Township, Grand Traverse County, Williamsburg, Michigan 
as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position,  and,  where applicable, cash flows thereof 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages iii through x and 31 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise Acme, Michigan’s basic financial statements. The Combining Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements 
section is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.  

 
The Combining Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the Combining Nonmajor Fund Financial 
Statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 

BAIRD, COTTER AND BISHOP, P.C. 
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The management of Acme Township, Grand Traverse County, Williamsburg, Michigan (“the Township”) offers 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Township for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2020. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial 
statements as a whole, which can be found in this report.  
 
Financial Highlights 
 
 The assets of the Township exceeded its liabilities at the close of this fiscal year by $28,799,199 (shown 

as net position).  Of this amount, $5,042,482 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the 
Township’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
 

 The Township’s net position increased by $966,105 during the fiscal year.  Government activities had a 
$780,946 increase, while business-type activities had an increase of $185,159.  

 
 As of June 30, 2020, the governmental funds of the Township reported combined ending fund balances 

of $3,174,588, of which $981,849 was unassigned.  
 

 The net position of the Township’s Water and Sewer funds increased by $185,159, bringing the total net 
position of this fund to $9,133,000. 
 

 The Township’s total long-term obligations decreased by $169,094 during the fiscal year as the Township 
made its required payment on a special assessment bond.   

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis provided here is intended to serve as an introduction to the Township’s basic 
financial statements.  The Township’s financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The report also contains 
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements  
 
The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
Township’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.  
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Township’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the Township is improving or deteriorating.  
 
The Statement of Activities presents the information showing how the Township’s net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported for 
some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods.   
 
Both of the government-wide statements distinguish functions of the Township that are principally supported by 
property taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended 
to recover all or most of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental 
activities of the Township include general government, public safety, public works, community and economic 
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development, recreation and culture, and interest on long-term debt.  Business-type activities of the Township 
include sewer and water services. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities or objectives.  The Township, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting 
to ensure compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the Township can be divided 
into three categories, governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information 
may be useful in assessing a government’s near-term financing requirements.  
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The Township maintains eleven individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in the 
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Fire Fund, Farmland Preservation Fund, Police Protection Fund, 
Nakwema Trailway Fund, and Holiday Hills Improvement Fund, which are considered to be major funds.  The 
remaining funds are considered nonmajor funds.  These funds are aggregated on the governmental funds balance 
sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances.  
Information is presented separately for these nonmajor funds in the combining balance sheet of nonmajor 
governmental fund types and the combining statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances of 
nonmajor governmental fund types. 
 
The Township adopts an annual appropriated budget for all funds of the Township. A budgetary comparison has 
been provided for the major special revenue funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget.  
    
Proprietary Funds  The Township maintains one type of proprietary fund.  Enterprise funds are used to report 
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  The 
Township uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer operations.  
 
Fiduciary Funds  Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources 
of those funds are not available to support the Township’s own programs.  The Township maintains one type of 
fiduciary fund.  The Custodial Fund reports resources held by the Township in a custodial capacity for other 
governments and other entities. 
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Notes to Financial Statements The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a full 
understanding of the data provided in both the government-wide and the fund financial statements.  
 
Other Information In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report further 
presents Required Supplementary Information (RSI) that explains and supports the information presented in the 
financial statements.  
 
This report also presents other supplementary information which includes the combining nonmajor fund 
financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are presented immediately following 
the required supplementary information.  
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net position, over time, may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In 
the case of the Township, assets exceeded liabilities by $28,799,199, at the close of the most recent fiscal year.  
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Assets

Current Assets 3,319,146$    3,107,083$    2,798,977$  2,476,052$  6,118,123$    5,583,135$    
Non Current Assets

Special Assessments &
Accounts Receivables 535,220         579,371         0                  0                  535,220         579,371         

Capital Assets 17,250,334    16,564,414    13,418,316  13,418,316  30,668,650    29,982,730    
Less: Accumulated 

Depreciation (576,055)        (458,561)        (6,823,832)   (6,555,466)   (7,399,887)     (7,014,027)     

Total Non Current Assets 17,209,499    16,685,224    6,594,484    6,862,850    23,803,983    23,548,074    

Total Assets 20,528,645    19,792,307    9,393,461    9,338,902    29,922,106    29,131,209    

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 162,446         150,554         138,441       156,257       300,887         306,811         
Long-Term Liabilities 700,000         756,500         122,020       234,804       822,020         991,304         

Total Liabilities 862,446         907,054         260,461       391,061       1,122,907      1,298,115      

Net Position
Net Investment in 

Capital Assets 15,919,279    15,295,853    6,366,225    6,524,645    22,285,504    21,820,498    
Restricted 1,471,213      1,437,786      0                  0                  1,471,213      1,437,786      
Unrestricted 2,275,707      2,151,614      2,766,775    2,423,196    5,042,482      4,574,810      

Total Net Position 19,666,199$  18,885,253$  9,133,000$  8,947,841$  28,799,199$  27,833,094$  

Total

Acme Township
Net Position as of June 30,

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

 

DRAFT



ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
WILLIAMSBURG MICHIGAN 

 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 
 

vi 

 
A significant balance of net position, $5,042,482, is unrestricted and may be used to meet the Township’s ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. An additional portion of the Township’s net position represents resources, 
$1,471,213 that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.   
 
The remainder of the Township’s net position, $22,285,504, reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, 
buildings, equipment, infrastructure, and others), less any related debt that is outstanding that the Township used 
to acquire or construct those assets.  The Township uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens. 
Accordingly, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Township’s investment in capital 
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be 
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.   
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Township is able to report positive balances in all categories of net 
position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.  
The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.  
 
The Township’s overall net position increased $966,105 from the prior fiscal year.  The reasons for this overall 
increase are discussed in the following sections for governmental activities and business-type activities. 
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Revenues

Program Revenues
Charges for Services 149,958$    179,179$    897,056$   949,685$  1,047,014$ 1,128,864$ 
Operating Grants 

and Contributions 25,833        53,853        0                0               25,833        53,853        
Capital Grants 

and Contributions 343,509      304,880      0                0               343,509      304,880      

General Revenues
Taxes 1,594,095   1,499,360   0                0               1,594,095   1,499,360   
State Grants 377,947      377,704      0                0               377,947      377,704      
Interest Earnings 25,269        27,229        11,845       4,072        37,114        31,301        
Other 33,279        0                 0                0               33,279        0                 

Total Revenues 2,549,890   2,442,205   908,901     953,757    3,458,791   3,395,962   

Acme Township
Change in Net Position

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Activities
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Total
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2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Expenses

General Government 518,136        496,284        0                 0                 518,136        496,284        
Public Safety 1,014,113     940,625        0                 0                 1,014,113     940,625        
Public Works 26,037          12,512          723,742      750,293      749,779        762,805        
Community and 

Economic Development 22,659          172,198        0                 0                 22,659          172,198        
Recreation and Culture 162,587        140,642        0                 0                 162,587        140,642        
Interest on Long-Term Debt 25,412          22,171          0                 0                 25,412          22,171          

Total Expenses 1,768,944     1,784,432     723,742      750,293      2,492,686     2,534,725     

Change in Net Position 780,946        657,773        185,159      203,464      966,105        861,237        

NET POSITION -
Beginning of Year 18,885,253   18,227,480   8,947,841   8,744,377   27,833,094   26,971,857   

NET POSITION - 
 End of Year 19,666,199$ 18,885,253$ 9,133,000$ 8,947,841$ 28,799,199$ 27,833,094$ 

Acme Township
Change in Net Position

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Activities
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Total

 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
During the current fiscal year, net position for the governmental activities increased $780,946 from the prior fiscal 
year for an ending balance of $19,666,199. The most significant portion of the revenue for all governmental 
activities of the Township comes from property taxes and state-shared revenues.  
 
The Township’s governmental activities expenses are dominated by the General Government and Public Safety 
expenditures.  The Township spent $518,136 on General Government during the fiscal year. Public Safety 
represented the next largest expense at $1,014,113, with the majority of the expenses being fire protection and 
ambulance services related to the services the Township provides to its residents. 
 
Business-Type Activities 
 
For the Township’s business-type activities, net position increased during the fiscal year by $185,159 to reach an 
ending balance of $9,133,000.  The business-type activities of the Township include the Water and Sewer Fund, 
which provide water and sewer services to various Township residents and commercial customers.  The most 
significant portion of the revenue for the Water and Sewer Fund in fiscal year 2019-2020 was from charges for 
services while the most significant portion of the expenses was operation and maintenance. 
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the Township uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements.   
 

Governmental Funds  The focus of the Township’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the Township’s 
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s 
net resources available for discretionary use as they represent the portion of fund balance which has not been 
limited to use for a particular purpose by either an external party, the Township itself, or a group or individual 
that has been delegated authority to assign resources for use for particular purposes by the Township’s Board.   
 
At June 30, 2020, the Township’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $3,174,588, an 
increase of $207,028 in comparison with the prior year.  $981,849 constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is 
available for spending at the government’s discretion.  The remainder of the fund balance is either nonspendable, 
restricted, committed, or assigned to indicate that it is 1) not in spendable form ($123,234) 2) restricted for 
particular purposes ($1,478,252), 3) committed for particular purposes ($591,253), or 4) assigned for particular 
purposes.   
 
General Fund – The fund balance of the General Fund increased its fund balance in this fiscal year by $195,109, 
bringing the balance to $1,679,637.  The increase can be attributed to the Township’s conservative spending and 
a decrease in capital outlay expenditures. 
   
Fire Fund – The fund balance of the Fire Fund increased its fund balance in this fiscal year by $2,529, bringing 
the balance to $64,172.  The increase in fund balance can be attributed to property tax revenues exceeding the 
amount of fire and ambulance expenditures.   
 
Farmland Preservation Fund - The fund balance of the Farmland Preservation Fund increased by $50,615, 
bringing the balance to $1,062,424. The increase in fund balance can be attributed to property tax revenue and 
federal grants exceeding farmland purchases and related expenditures.   
 
Police Protection Fund - The fund balance of the Police Protection Fund decreased by $33,632, bringing the 
balance to $82. The decrease in fund balance is caused by expenditures for police protection exceeding property 
taxes and transfers in.   
 
Nakwema Trailway Fund – The Nakwema Trailway Fund was created in the 2019-20 fiscal year to account for 
revenue and expenditure activity for a new trailway within the Township. The fund balance increased by $33,994.  
The increase can be attributed to grants received in excess of trailway expenditures.  
 
Holiday Hills Improvement Fund – The fund balance of the Holiday Hills Improvement Fund decreased its 
fund balance in this fiscal year by $8,875, bringing the balance to $302,517.  The decrease was caused by the 
special assessments and interest collected being exceeded by the debt and interest obligations of this fund. 
 
Proprietary Funds The proprietary funds provide virtually the same information as the government-wide 
statements; however, more detail may be found in the fund financial statements. 
 
Water and Sewer Fund – The Water and Sewer Fund ended this fiscal year with $9,133,000 in net position, an 
increase of $185,159 in comparison with the prior year.  The increase in fund balance is due to the water and 
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sewer funds receiving more revenues for operating services than they incurred for operating and depreciation 
expenses. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
During the year, there were no significant amendments in appropriations between the General Fund’s original 
and final budget.  
 
The following schedule shows a comparison of the original general fund budget, the final amended general fund 
budget and actual totals from operations: 

 
ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL

TOTAL REVENUES 925,429$         925,429$      945,043$      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 921,144$         921,144$      748,388$       
 
The Township budgets conservatively, preparing for a worse-case scenario in terms of spending which accounts 
for most of the variance between final budgeted appropriations and actual expenditures.  The variance between 
final budget and actual revenues was caused by the Township receiving more in property taxes than were 
originally anticipated.  
 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets   
 
The Township’s investment in capital assets for governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2020, 
amounted to $23,268,763 net of accumulated depreciation.  Capital assets summarized below include any items 
purchased with a cost greater than $5,000 individually and that have a useful life greater than one year.  A 
summary of capital asset categories is illustrated below: 
 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Land and Development Rights 15,575,227$    14,952,835$    0$                    0$                    15,575,227$  14,952,835$  
Construction in Progress 48,990             154,032           0                      0                      48,990           154,032         
Buildings and Improvements 1,457,209        1,286,628        0                      0                      1,457,209      1,286,628      
Vehicles 97,342             97,342             0                      0                      97,342           97,342           
Equipment 71,566             73,577             0                      0                      71,566           73,577           
Water and Sewer System 0                      0                      13,418,316      13,418,316      13,418,316    13,418,316    

17,250,334      16,564,414      13,418,316      13,418,316      30,668,650    29,982,730    
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (576,055)          (458,561)          (6,823,832)       (6,555,466)       (7,399,887)     (7,014,027)     

Net Capital Assets 16,674,279$    16,105,853$    6,594,484$      6,862,850$      23,268,763$  22,968,703$  

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totals

Acme Township
Capital Assets as of June 30, 
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Major capital asset additions during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 
 Farmland development rights totaling $622,392. 
 Township Hall improvements at a cost of $16,548 were completed during the fiscal year and added to 

prior year construction in progress for a total cost of hall improvements of $170,580. 
 Park equipment and installation for $5,766.  
 Construction in progress for work on the Nakwema Trailway that totaled $48,990. 

 
During 2019-20 the Township has committed to spend resources on improvements in the sewer system 
infrastructure costing approximately $130,000.  
 
Additional information regarding the Township’s capital assets can be found in the Notes to Financial Statements 
section of this document. 
 
Long-Term Obligations 
 
The Township has bonded debt outstanding of $967,660 as of June 30, 2020. More information on the Township’s 
long-term obligation is available in the Notes to Financial Statements section of this document. 
 
Economic Condition and Outlook 

 
 The Township continues to look for ways to improve the services it provides to its residents in a manner 

that is financially responsible and plans to maintain its financial stability over the course of the next fiscal 
year.  
 

 Due to the uncertainty surrounding future state funding for local governments as a result of COVID-19, 
the Township did not factor any adverse impact for the 2020-2021 year when preparing the budget in 
June. As more guidance becomes available and the situation becomes clearer, the Township will act 
accordingly. 

 
Request for Information 
 
The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general overview 
of the Township’s finances and to demonstrate the Township’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you 
have any questions about this report or need any additional information, contact Acme Township at 6042 Acme 
Road, Williamsburg, MI 49690. 
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GOVERNMENTAL 

ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE 

ACTIVITIES TOTALS

Cash 3,062,861$             2,673,591$           5,736,452$    

Accounts Receivable 31,438                    0                           31,438           

Special Assessments Receivable 44,151                    0                           44,151           

Internal Balances 2,167                      (2,167)                   0                    

Due from Other Governmental Units 159,259                  127,553                286,812         

Prepaid Expenses 19,270                    0                           19,270           

Total Current Assets 3,319,146               2,798,977             6,118,123      

Accounts Receivable 43,331                    0                           43,331           

Special Assessments Receivable 491,889                  0                           491,889         

Total Non-Current Assets 535,220                  0                           535,220         

CAPITAL ASSETS

Land 15,575,227             0                           15,575,227    

Construction in Progress 48,990                    0                           48,990           

Buildings and Improvements 1,457,209               0                           1,457,209      

Vehicles 97,342                    0                           97,342           

Equipment 71,566                    0                           71,566           

System Infrastructure 0                             13,418,316           13,418,316    

17,250,334             13,418,316           30,668,650    

Less Accumulated Depreciation 576,055                  6,823,832             7,399,887      

Net Capital Assets 16,674,279             6,594,484             23,268,763    

TOTAL ASSETS 20,528,645             9,393,461             29,922,106    

ASSETS

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY

WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020

CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL 

ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE 

ACTIVITIES TOTALS

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY

WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 47,904                    32,202                  80,106           

Accrued Wages and Payroll Liabilities 17,503                    0                           17,503           

Due to Other Governments 35,000                    0                           35,000           

Accrued Interest 7,039                      837                       7,876             

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 55,000                    105,402                160,402         

Total Current Liabilities 162,446                  138,441                300,887         

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds Payable, Net of Premium 755,000                  227,422                982,422         

Less:  Current Portion (55,000)                   (105,402)               (160,402)        

Total Long-Term Liabilities 700,000                  122,020                822,020         

TOTAL LIABILITIES 862,446                  260,461                1,122,907      

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 15,919,279             6,366,225             22,285,504    

Restricted for Fire Protection 64,172                    0                           64,172           

Restricted for Debt Service 295,478                  0                           295,478         

Restricted for Public Broadcast 6,864                      0                           6,864             

Restricted for Telecommunication Right-of-Ways 7,395                      0                           7,395             

Restricted for Liquor Law Enforcement 804                         0                           804                

Restricted for Police Protection 82                           0                           82                  

Restricted for Preservation of Farmland 1,062,424               0                           1,062,424      

Restricted for Nakwema Trailway 33,994                    0                           33,994           

Unrestricted 2,275,707               2,766,775             5,042,482      

TOTAL NET POSITION 19,666,199$           9,133,000$           28,799,199$  

LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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OPERATING CAPITAL 
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTALS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
   GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

General Government 518,136$      92,613$            0$                          0$                          (425,523)$                 0$                                (425,523)$                
Public Safety 1,014,113     0                       11,446                   0                            (1,002,667)                0                                  (1,002,667)               
Public Works 26,037          6,275                9,265                     0                            (10,497)                     0                                  (10,497)                    
Community and Economic Development  22,659          50,770              0                            311,196                 339,307                    0                                  339,307                   
Recreation and Culture 162,587        300                   5,122                     32,313                   (124,852)                   0                                  (124,852)                  
Interest on Long-Term Debt 25,412          0                       0                            0                            (25,412)                     0                                  (25,412)                    

Total Governmental Activities 1,768,944     149,958            25,833                   343,509                 (1,249,644)                0                                  (1,249,644)               

   BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Sewer System 709,609        882,292            0                            0                            0                               172,683                       172,683                   
Water System 14,133          14,764              0                            0                            0                               631                              631                          

Total Business-Type Activities 723,742        897,056            0                            0                            0                               173,314                       173,314                   

TOTAL 2,492,686$   1,047,014$       25,833$                 343,509$               (1,249,644)                173,314                       (1,076,330)               

GENERAL REVENUES
Taxes 1,594,095                 0                                  1,594,095                
State Grants 377,947                    0                                  377,947                   
Interest Earnings 25,269                      11,845                         37,114                     
Other 33,279                      0                                  33,279                     

Total General Revenues 2,030,590                 11,845                         2,042,435                

Change in Net Position 780,946                    185,159                       966,105                   

NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 18,885,253               8,947,841                    27,833,094              

NET POSITION - End of Year 19,666,199$             9,133,000$                  28,799,199$            

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
PROGRAM REVENUES NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CAPITAL
PROJECTS DEBT SERVICE

FUND FUND

GENERAL 
FUND FIRE FUND

FARM LAND 
PRESERVATION 

FUND

POLICE 
PROTECTION 

FUND

NAKWEMA 
TRAILWAY 

FUND

HOLIDAY HILLS 
IMPROVEMENT 

FUND

NONMAJOR 
GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS TOTALS

Cash 1,497,766$  72,605$        1,102,191$            21,301$            33,994$             302,517$                 32,487$                  3,062,861$      
Accounts Receivable 74,269         0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              500                         74,769             
Special Assessments Receivable 0                  0                   0                            0                       0                        536,040                   0                             536,040           
Due from Other Funds 2,167           0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             2,167               
Due from Other Governmental Units 159,259       0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             159,259           
Prepaid Expenditures 19,270         0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             19,270             

TOTAL ASSETS 1,752,731$  72,605$        1,102,191$            21,301$            33,994$             838,557$                 32,987$                  3,854,366$      

RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 12,260$       8,433$          4,767$                   21,219$            0$                      0$                            1,225$                    47,904$           
Accrued Payroll and Payroll Liabilities 17,503         0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             17,503             
Due to Other Governments 0                  0                   35,000                   0                       0                        0                              0                             35,000             

Total Liabilities 29,763         8,433            39,767                   21,219              0                        0                              1,225                      100,407           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue 43,331         0                   0                            0                       0                        536,040                   0                             579,371           

FUND BALANCE 
Nonspendable for Prepaid Expenditures 19,270         0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             19,270             
Nonspendable for Long-Term Receivables 103,964       0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             103,964           
Restricted for Fire Protection 0                  64,172          0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             64,172             
Restricted for Debt Service 0                  0                   0                            0                       0                        302,517                   0                             302,517           
Restricted for Public Broadcast 6,864           0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             6,864               
Restricted for Telecommunication Right-of-Ways 7,395           0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             7,395               
Restricted for Liquor Law Enforcement 0                  0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              804                         804                  
Restricted for Police Protection 0                  0                   0                            82                     0                        0                              0                             82                    
Restricted for Preservation of Farmland 0                  0                   1,062,424              0                       0                        0                              0                             1,062,424        
Restricted for Nakwema Trailway 0                  0                   0                            0                       33,994               0                              0                             33,994             
Committed for Parks and Recreation 0                  0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              14,647                    14,647             
Committed for Shoreline Preservation 0                  0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              1,387                      1,387               

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

ASSETS

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2020

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CAPITAL
PROJECTS DEBT SERVICE

FUND FUND

GENERAL 
FUND FIRE FUND

FARM LAND 
PRESERVATION 

FUND

POLICE 
PROTECTION 

FUND

NAKWEMA 
TRAILWAY 

FUND

HOLIDAY HILLS 
IMPROVEMENT 

FUND

NONMAJOR 
GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS TOTALS

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2020

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Committed for Cemetery Expenditures 0                  0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              14,924                    14,924             
Committed for Self Funded Accounts 388,125       0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             388,125           
Committed for Septage Plant Bond Buyout 110,170       0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             110,170           
Committed for GTTC Engineer Project Manager 32,000         0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             32,000             
Committed for Townhall/Community Center Improvements 30,000         0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             30,000             
Unassigned 981,849       0                   0                            0                       0                        0                              0                             981,849           

Total Fund Balance   1,679,637    64,172          1,062,424              82                     33,994               302,517                   31,762                    3,174,588        

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 1,752,731$  72,605$        1,102,191$            21,301$            33,994$             838,557$                 32,987$                  3,854,366$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Total Fund Balance for Governmental Funds 3,174,588$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Capital Assets 17,250,334$     

Accumulated Depreciation (576,055)          16,674,279      

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period 

and are not reported in the funds.

Bonds Payable (755,000)         

Accrued interest is not reported as a liability in the funds; it is

 recorded when paid. (7,039)             

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period

expenditures and therefore are reported as unavailable in the funds.

Special Assessments and Other Receivables 579,371           

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES   19,666,199$    

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

WILLIMASBURG, MICHIGAN

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CAPITAL

PROJECTS DEBT SERVICE

FUND FUND

GENERAL 

FUND FIRE FUND

FARM LAND 

PRESERVATION 

FUND

POLICE 

PROTECTION 

FUND

NAKWEMA 

TRAILWAY 

FUND

HOLIDAY HILLS 

IMPROVEMENT 

FUND

NONMAJOR 

GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS TOTALS

REVENUES

Property Taxes 377,975$       932,897$            258,024$              25,199$              0$                     0$                          0$                              1,594,095$   

Special Assessments 0                    0                         0                           0                         0                       47,626                   0                                47,626          

Licenses and Permits 88,750           0                         0                           0                         0                       0                            0                                88,750          

Federal Grants 0                    0                         311,196                0                         0                       0                            0                                311,196        

State Grants 387,212         0                         0                           0                         0                       0                            11,446                       398,658        

Charges for Services 54,633           0                         0                           0                         0                       0                            6,275                         60,908          

Interest and Rents 3,194             0                         1,841                    0                         0                       20,529                   5                                25,569          

Other Revenues 33,279           0                         0                           0                         27,313              0                            10,122                       70,714          

Total Revenues 945,043         932,897              571,061                25,199                27,313              68,155                   27,848                       2,597,516     

EXPENDITURES

General Government 513,847         0                         0                           0                         0                       0                            0                                513,847        

Public Safety 0                    930,368              0                           83,745                0                       0                            0                                1,014,113     

Public Works 16,121           0                         0                           0                         0                       0                            7,074                         23,195          

Community and Economic Development    124,605         0                         520,446                0                         0                       0                            0                                645,051        

Recreation and Culture 86,871           0                         0                           0                         0                       0                            10,118                       96,989          

Capital Outlay 6,944             0                         0                           0                         13,319              0                            0                                20,263          

Debt Service 0                    0                         0                           0                         0                       77,030                   0                                77,030          

Total Expenditures 748,388         930,368              520,446                83,745                13,319              77,030                   17,192                       2,390,488     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over Expenditures 196,655         2,529                  50,615                  (58,546)               13,994              (8,875)                    10,656                       207,028        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In (Out) (1,546)            0                         0                           24,914                20,000              0                            (43,368)                      0                   

Net Change in Fund Balance 195,109         2,529                  50,615                  (33,632)               33,994              (8,875)                    (32,712)                      207,028        

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 1,484,528      61,643                1,011,809             33,714                0                       311,392                 64,474                       2,967,560     

FUND BALANCE - End of Year 1,679,637$    64,172$              1,062,424$           82$                     33,994$            302,517$               31,762$                     3,174,588$   

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY

WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

7

DRAFT



Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds 207,028$        

Amounts reported for governmental activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures in the Statement of

Activities.  These costs are allocated over their estimated useful lives as

depreciation.  

Depreciation Expense (125,270)         

Capital Outlay 538,098          

Governmental funds do not report donated capital assets under the modified accrual

basis of accounting but are capitalized in the Statement of Activities. 

Acquisition Value of Donated Land  155,598          

Repayments of principal on long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental 

funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement

of Net Position.

Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt 55,000            

Accrued interest in bonds is recorded on the Statement of Activities when incurred; it is not

recorded in the governmental funds until it is paid.

Accrued Interest - Beginning of the Year 3,657              

Accrued Interest - End of the Year (7,039)             

Changes to compensated absences are not shown in the fund financial statements. The net

effect of the current year change to compensated absences is recorded in the 

Statement of Activities. 1,500              

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when

measurable and available.  The entity-wide statements recognize revenue when

earned.  

Unavailable Revenue - Beginning of the Year (626,997)         

Unavailable Revenue - End of the Year 579,371          

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES   780,946$        

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

JUNE 30, 2020

IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SEWER WATER TOTAL ENTERPRISE
FUND FUND FUNDS

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash 2,667,945$      5,646$              2,673,591$                  
Due from Other Governments 125,095           2,458                127,553                      

Total Current Assets 2,793,040        8,104                2,801,144                   

CAPITAL ASSETS
System Infrastructure - Water 0                     177,000            177,000                      
System Infrastructure - Sewer 13,241,316      0                       13,241,316                  

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (6,742,117)      (81,715)             (6,823,832)                  

Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,499,199        95,285              6,594,484                   

TOTAL ASSETS 9,292,239        103,389            9,395,628                   

Accounts Payable 31,260             942                   32,202                        
Due to Other Funds 2,167               0                       2,167                          
Accrued Interest 837                  0                       837                             
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 105,402           0                       105,402                      

Total Liabilities 139,666           942                   140,608                      

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Bonds Payable, Net of Current Portion and Premium 122,020           0                       122,020                      

TOTAL LIABILITIES 261,686           942                   262,628                      

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,270,940        95,285              6,366,225                   
Unrestricted 2,759,613        7,162                2,766,775                   

TOTAL NET POSITION 9,030,553$      102,447$          9,133,000$                  

LIABILITIES 

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SEWER WATER TOTAL ENTERPRISE
FUND FUND FUNDS

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services 882,292$              14,764$               897,056$                     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations and Maintenance 440,335                 10,593                 450,928                       
Depreciation 264,826                 3,540                   268,366                       

Total Operating Expenses 705,161                 14,133                 719,294                       

Operating Income (Loss) 177,131                 631                      177,762                       

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Interest Income 11,845                   0                          11,845                         
Interest Expense (4,448)                   0                          (4,448)                          

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 7,397                     0                          7,397                           

Change in Net Position 184,528                 631                      185,159                       

NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 8,846,025             101,816               8,947,841                    

NET POSITION - End of Year  9,030,553$           102,447$             9,133,000$                  

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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SEWER WATER TOTAL ENTERPRISE
FUND FUND FUNDS

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Received from Other Governments 831,148$               14,887$                 846,035$                      
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (454,195)                (10,654)                 (464,849)                      

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 376,953                 4,233                     381,186                        

   Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Principal Payments on Long-term Debt (105,212)                0                            (105,212)                      
Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt (6,366)                    0                            (6,366)                          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Financing Activities (111,578)                0                            (111,578)                      

   Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Income 4,463                     0                            4,463                            

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 269,838                 4,233                     274,071                        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  - Beginning of Year 2,398,107              1,413                     2,399,520                     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  - End of Year 2,667,945$            5,646$                   2,673,591$                   

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss) 177,131$               631$                      177,762$                      
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income

To Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation 264,826                 3,540                     268,366                        
(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets

Due from Other Governments (53,811)                  123                        (53,688)                        
Accounts Receivable 2,667                     0                            2,667                            

Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable (16,027)                  (61)                        (16,088)                        
Due to Other Funds 2,167                     0                            2,167                            

Total Adjustments 199,822                 3,602                     203,424                        

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES   376,953$               4,233$                   381,186$                      

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TAX 
COLLECTION 

FUND

TRUST AND 
AGENCY 

FUND TOTALS

Cash 2,353$              4,000$              6,353$              

Due to Other Governments 2,353                0                       2,353                

NET POSITION
Restricted for Others 0$                     4,000$              4,000$              

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

LIABILITIES

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUND

CUSTODIAL    FUNDS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TAX 
COLLECTION 

FUND

TRUST AND 
AGENCY 

FUND TOTALS
ADDITIONS

Property Taxes Collected 11,849,863$     0$                     11,849,863$     
Collected for Others 0                       51,700              51,700              

Total Additions 11,849,863       51,700              11,901,563       

DEDUCTIONS
Property Taxes Distributed 11,849,863       0                       11,849,863       
Disbursed to Others 0                       53,300              53,300              

Total Deductions 11,849,863       53,300              11,903,163       

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fiduciary Net Position  0                       (1,600)               (1,600)               

NET POSITION - Beginning of Year - As Restated   0                       5,600                5,600                

NET POSITION - End of Year   0$                     4,000$              4,000$              

CUSTODIAL    FUNDS

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

FIDUCIARY FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
13
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting policies of Acme Township (the “Township” or “government”) have been prepared in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Township’s accounting policies are 
described below. 
 

A. Description of Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., The Statement of Net Position and The Statement of 
Activities) report the information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. All 
fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial statements. Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to 
external customers for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain 
legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.  Acme 
Township does not have any component units.   

 
B. Reporting Entity 

 
The Township is located in Grand Traverse County, Michigan, and provides services to its residents in 
many areas including police and fire protection, community enrichment and development, water and sewer 
services, and recreation and culture. The Township is a general law township governed by a seven-member 
board elected by the citizens of the Township. The Township Board consists of the supervisor, clerk, 
treasurer and four trustees. 
 
In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, "The Financial Reporting Entity," these financial statements present the 
Township. The criteria established by GASB for determining the reporting entity includes oversight 
responsibility, fiscal dependency, and whether the financial statements would be misleading if data were 
not included. There are no other units that should be included in the financial statements.  
 
The following entities are not included in the Township’s financial statements but do represent an ongoing 
financial interest or responsibility:  
 
Joint Ventures  
 
Master Sewer Agreement 
 
The Township entered into a master sewer agreement effective July 1, 1987 through June 30, 2041 with 
the City of Traverse City, the Townships of Peninsula and Garfield in Grand Traverse County, the 
Township of Elmwood in Leelanau County, and Grand Traverse County. This master sewer agreement 
defines the allocation of costs and establishes certain rights and responsibilities with respect to the 
wastewater treatment plant and sewer system. Grand Traverse County is the owner of the treatment plant 
and the City of Traverse City is the owner of all multi-user facilities. The townships have the option to 
purchase the facility when certain bonds issued by Grand Traverse County are retired.  
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The City of Traverse City is the exclusive manager of the plant for the benefit to itself and the townships. 
As the exclusive manager, the City of Traverse City has the obligation to fully inform and advise 
townships as to the treatment plant's operation and the townships shall have the right to comment on all 
matters connected with the administration of the plant.  
 
Each participant in the joint venture pays an amount sufficient to cover its pro rata share of treatment plant 
costs. Each participant's pro rata share is determined by its volume of sewage treated in relation to total 
sewage treated at the plant.  

 
The Township makes debt service payments to the Grand Traverse County Department of Public Works 
for the Township's portion of the Sewage Treatment Facility bonds as listed in Note 3.E. During the year 
ended June 30, 2020, the Township paid $103,401 to reduce its balance of the sewage treatment plant 
bonds.  
 
Metro Emergency Services Authority  
 
The Township participates jointly in the operation of the Metro Emergency Services Authority with the 
charter townships of East Bay and Garfield in Grand Traverse County. The Township paid $930,368 to 
Metro Emergency Services Authority during the year ended June 30, 2020 for fire department and 
emergency services. 
 

C. Basis of Presentation – Government-Wide Financial Statements  
 

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. The 
governmental activities column incorporates data from the governmental funds and internal service funds, 
while business-type activities incorporate data from the government’s enterprise funds. Separate financial 
statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the 
latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  

 
As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes where the amounts are reasonably 
equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between government’s water and 
sewer functions and various other functions of the government. Eliminations of these charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.  
 

D. Basis of Presentation – Fund Financial Statements  
 
The fund financial statements provide information about the government’s funds. Separate statements for 
each fund category – governmental, proprietary and fiduciary – are presented. The emphasis of fund 
financial statements is on major governmental and proprietary funds, each displayed in a separate column.  
 
The Township reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues are primarily 
derived from property taxes and state shared revenue. 
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The Fire Fund accounts for the Township’s portion of operation of the Metro Emergency Services 
Authority. Financing is provided by a property tax levy.  
 
The Farm Land Preservation Fund accounts for the Township’s development of farm land. Financing is 
provided by a property tax levy. 
 
The Police Protection Fund accounts for the Township’s portion of operation of the Grand Traverse 
County Police Department. Financing is provided by a property tax levy. 
 
The Nakwema Trailway Fund accounts for costs associated with the Nakwema Trailway project. 
Financing is provided by transfers in from other funds, various local grants and contributions, and state 
grants. 
 
The Holiday Hills Improvement Fund accounts for costs for improving roads in holiday hills. Financing 
is provided by a special assessment and transportation bond (which will also be repaid with special 
assessments). 

 
The Township reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 
The Sewer Fund accounts for the results of operations that provide sewer services to residents, financed 
primarily by a user charge for the provision of those services.  
 
The Water Fund accounts for the results of operations that provide water services to residents, financed 
primarily by a user charge for the provision of those services. 
 
Additionally, the Township reports the following nonmajor fund types: 
 
The Special Revenue Funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted, committed, or assigned 
to expenditures for  specific purposes.   
 
The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the acquisition of capital assets or the construction of major capital 
projects. 

 
Additionally, Acme Township reports the following fiduciary fund: 

 
The Custodial Funds account for property taxes collected by the Township on behalf of other 
governmental units as well as the Township itself and other monies held for units of governments and 
organizations. 

 
During the course of operations, the government has activity between funds for various purposes. Any 
residual balances outstanding at year-end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from 
other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made 
in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds included in 
governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the 
net amount is included as internal service funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as 
internal balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included 
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in business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net amount is included 
as internal balances in the business-type activities column.  
 
Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund 
financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in 
fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide 
financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so 
that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances 
between the funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is 
included as transfers in the business-type activities column.  
 

E. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and 
basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current 
financial resources or economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or 
events for recognition in the financial statements.  
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when 
a liability is incurred, regardless of timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues 
in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as 
they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, 
the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, 
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are 
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  
 
Property taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.  Entitlements 
are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and 
the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue resource (within 
60 days of year-end). Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying 
expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is 
received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within 60 days of year-
end). All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received 
by the government. 
 
The proprietary funds are reported using the economic measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. The custodial fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for 
reporting its assets and liabilities.  
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F. Budgetary Information 
 
1. Budgetary Basis of Accounting  
 

 Prior to July 1, the Township Supervisor submits to the Township Board a proposed operating 
budget for all governmental funds for the fiscal year.  The operating budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them. 
 

 The Township Board holds a public hearing and adopts a resolution approving the budgets. 
 
 All transfers of budget amounts between functions within the General Fund and any revisions that 

alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Township Board.  
 

 Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all 
governmental fund types. 

 
 Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with 

generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  All appropriations lapse at year-end.  Budgeted 
amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Township Board from time to time 
throughout the year.   
 

 Encumbrance accounting is not employed in the Township’s governmental funds.   
 
2. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations: 

 
BUDGET ACTUAL

General Fund
Public Works

Roads, Streets and Bridges 5,000$        5,964$        
Fire Fund

Public Works
Ambulance 106,425      108,027      

Farm Land Preservation Fund
Community and Economic Development

Farmland Preservation 264,950      520,446       
 
These overages were funded by greater than anticipated revenues and available fund balance. 

 
G. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance  

 
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
short-term investments. The government considers all highly liquid investments (including certificates 
of deposit) to be cash equivalents.  
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2. Investments 
 
The Township’s investment policy is in compliance with state law and authorizes the Township 
treasurer to invest in the investments directly listed in Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended. Some 
investments authorized by state law are shown as cash on the financial statements.  
     

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items 
 

Inventory is valued at cost using the first-in/first-out method.  Inventory consists of expendable 
supplies held for consumption, which are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when 
purchased.  
 
Certain payments made to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of 
prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.  

 
4. Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the government 
as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated 
useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost 
if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of 
donation. During the fiscal year, the Township purchased farmland development rights, of which was 
discounted 25% by the seller. At the time the land was acquired, it was appraised at $622,392 which 
amounted to a discount of $155,598. 

 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend asset lives are not capitalized. 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of proprietary fund capital assets is reflected in the capitalized 
value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.   

 
Land and not in progress are depreciated. Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, 
as well as the component unit are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

 
         ASSETS       YEARS  
Road Improvements 15-20 
Water and Sewer Infrastructure 50 
Buildings and Improvements 
Vehicles 

40-50 
3-5 

Equipment 3-7 
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5. Conservation Easements 
 

A conservation easement is a legal agreement between a landowner and a qualified conservation 
organization that permanently limits a property's use in order to protect its conservation values. 
Conservation easements, either purchased or donated, are initially valued at their appraised value. The 
difference between the purchase price and appraised value is reflected as capital grants and 
contributions in the statement of activities. This value is capitalized as a non-depreciable capital asset 
as it is recognized as an intangible asset providing value to the residents of the Township. 

  
6. Long-Term Obligations 
 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and 
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method which 
approximates the effective interest method over the term of the related obligations.   

 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts 
during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuance are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual 
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

 
7. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The Township does not have any deferred 
outflows of resources. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources.  The separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The Township has two items that fit this criteria, 
unavailable revenue from special assessments and accounts receivable expected to be collected more 
than 60 days after year end.  Since the accrual basis of accounting recognizes this revenue when it is 
earned, the unavailable is only reported at the fund level, which uses the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. 
 

8. Unearned Revenue 
 

 Unearned revenue arises when resources are received by the Township before it has a legal claim to 
them. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the government 
has a legal claim to the resources, revenue is recognized. The Township does not have unearned 
revenue. 
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9. Net Position Flow Assumption 
 

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., 
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to 
report as restricted – net position and unrestricted – net position in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the 
resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted – net 
position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net position is applied.  
 

10. Fund Balance Flow Assumption 
 

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and 
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance).  In order to 
calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the 
governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the 
resources are considered to be applied.  It is the government’s policy to consider restricted fund 
balance to have depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, 
when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund 
balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance.  Unassigned fund balance is applied last.  

 
11. Fund Balance Policies 
 

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any 
limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes.  The government itself can establish 
limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an 
assignment (assigned fund balance). 
 
The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific 
purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making 
authority.  The governing board is the highest level of decision-making authority for the government 
that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance.  Once 
adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is taken (the 
adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.  
 
Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for 
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed.  The board may also assign 
fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue 
and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget.  Unlike commitments, assignments 
generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be 
taken for the removal of an assignment.  Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is 
essential to either remove or revise a commitment.  
 
Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the Township’s general fund and includes 
all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications and is therefore available to be spent 
as determined by the Township’s Board.  
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The Township intends to maintain a fund balance of 50% of the Township's general fund annual 
operating expenditures. If a fund balance declines below 50%, it shall be recovered at a rate of 1%, at 
a minimum, each year. 
 

12. Use of Estimates 
 

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

 
H. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses 

 
1. Program Revenues 
 

Amounts reported as program revenue include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, 
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment 
and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  All taxes, including those 
dedicated for specific purposes and other internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. 
  

2. Property Taxes/Special Assessments 
 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on the property as of the date they are levied.  State 
education taxes, county taxes, school district and college taxes, and transportation system taxes are 
levied and due July 1 and become delinquent after September 14.  The remaining millages are levied 
and due December 1 and become delinquent after February 14.  Collections of taxes and remittances 
of them are accounted for in the Tax Collection Fund.  Township property tax revenues are recognized 
when they become both measurable and available for use to finance Township operations.  
 
The 2019 taxable valuation of the Township totaled $357,150,374, on which ad valorem taxes levied 
consisted of 0.7259 mills for operating purposes, 2.4500 mills for fire operations, 0.0750 mills for 
police protection and .3250 mills for ambulance services.  
 

3. Proprietary Funds Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses  
 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  Eventually, the principal 
operating revenues of the sewer fund are charges to customers for services.  Operating expenses for 
enterprise funds include cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. 
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses.  
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

A. Violations of Legal or Contractual Provisions  
 
Note 1.F.2, on the Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations, describes a budgetary violation that 
occurred for the year ended June 30, 2020. It also explains the provision provided by law that was used to 
remedy the violation.  

 
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS 
 

A. Deposits and Investments  
 

Custodial credit risk – deposits.  In the case of deposits, this is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, 
the government’s deposits may not be returned to it.  As of June 30, 2020, $5,236,151 of the government’s 
bank balance of $5,736,151 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and 
uncollateralized.  The risk is spread amongst the Township’s Funds. Although the Township’s investment 
policy does not directly address custodial credit risk, it typically limits its exposure by controlling who 
holds the Township’s deposits. 
 
Interest rate risk.  The Township will minimize interest rate risk, which is the risk that the market value 
of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in market interest rates, by; structuring the investment 
portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the 
need to sell securities in the open market; and investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term 
securities, liquid asset funds, money market mutual funds, or similar investing pools and limiting the 
average maturity in accordance with the Township’s cash requirement. 

 
Credit risk. State law limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds to a prime or better 
rating issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSOs). 
 
Concentration of credit risk.  The Township will minimize concentration of credit risk, which is the risk 
of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Township’s investment in a single issuer, by diversifying the 
investment portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or issuer will be 
minimized.  
 
Foreign currency risk.  The Township is not authorized to invest in investments which have this type of 
risk; therefore, it is not addressed in the investment policy. 
 
Custodial credit risk – investments.  For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  Although the Township’s investment policy does 
not directly address custodial credit risk, it typically limits its exposure by purchasing insured or registered 
investments or by controlling who holds the investments. 

   

Fair Market Value Disclosure - The Township is required to disclose amounts within a framework 
established for measuring fair value.  That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the 
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to 
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and 
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the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).  The three levels of the fair value 
hierarchy are described as follows: 

 
Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical securities. 
 
Level 2:  Prices determined using other significant observable inputs.  Observable inputs are inputs 
that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing a security and are developed 
based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. These may include 
quoted prices from similar activities, interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, and others. Debt 
securities are valued in accordance with evaluated bid price supplied by the pricing service and 
generally categorized as Level 2 in the hierarchy. Securities that are categorized as Level 2 in the 
hierarchy include, but are not limited to, repurchase agreements, U.S. government agency securities, 
corporate securities, and commercial paper.  
 
Level 3:  Prices determined using significant unobservable inputs.  In situations where quoted prices 
or observable inputs are unavailable or deemed less relevant (for example, when there is little or no 
market activity for an investment at the end of the period), unobservable inputs may be used.  
Unobservable inputs reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the factors market 
participants would use in pricing the security and would be based on the best information available 
under the circumstances. 

 
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.  Valuation techniques used need to 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.  There are two types 
of valuation techniques most commonly used and vary depending on the level of investment. These two 
techniques are the market approach and income approach. The market approach uses prices and other 
relevant information generated by the market transactions involving identical or similar assets and 
liabilities. The income approach discounts future amounts to a single current amount and the discount rate 
used in the process should reflect current market expectations about risks associated with those future cash 
flows.  

 
The Township does not have any investments subject to the fair value measurement. 
 
The carrying amount of deposits and investments is as follows: 
 

Total
Deposits – including Fiduciary Funds of $6,353 5,742,805$     

 
The above amounts are reported in the financial statements as follows: 
 

Total
Cash - Fiduciary Funds 6,353$           
Cash  - Governmental Funds 3,062,861      
Cash - Proprietary Funds 2,673,591      

5,742,805$     
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B. Receivables 
 

Receivables as of year-end for the government’s individual major funds in aggregate and combined 
nonmajor funds, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows: 
 

Holiday Hills Water & Non
General Fire Improvement Sewer Major Total

Receivables
Accounts 74,269$   0$       0$             0$            500$     74,769$      
Special Assessments 0              0         536,040    0              0           536,040      
Due from Other Governments 159,259   0         0               127,553   0           286,812      
Total 233,528$ 0$       536,040$  127,553$ 500$     897,621$     

 
Amounts due from other governments include amounts consisting of state-shared revenues and an amount 
owed from Grand Traverse County for the General Fund. Due from other governments consists of May 
and June usage payments due from Grand Traverse County. 

 
C. Capital Assets 

 
Governmental Activities Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Land and Development Rights 14,952,835$  622,392$ 0$             15,575,227$  
Construction in Progress 154,032         48,990     (154,032)   48,990           

15,106,867    671,382   (154,032)   15,624,217    
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Buildings and Improvements 1,286,629      170,580   0               1,457,209      
Vehicles 97,342           0              0               97,342           
Equipment 73,576           5,766       (7,776)       71,566           

1,457,547      176,346   (7,776)       1,626,117      

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements 316,344         115,947   0               432,291         
Vehicles 80,421           6,513       0               86,934           
Equipment 61,796           2,810       (7,776)       56,830           

Total Accumulated Depreciation 458,561         125,270   (7,776)       576,055         

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 998,986         51,076     0               1,050,062      

Governmental Activities Capital
Assets, Net 16,105,853$  722,458$ (154,032)$ 16,674,279$  

 Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated      

Total Capital Assets, 
     Not Being Depreciated
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Business-Type Activities Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Sewer System 13,241,316$ 0$             0$            13,241,316$ 
Water System 177,000        0               0              177,000        

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 13,418,316   0               0              13,418,316   

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Sewer System 6,477,291     264,826    0              6,742,117     
Water System 78,175          3,540        0              81,715          

Total Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated 6,555,466     268,366    0              6,823,832     

Business-Type Activities Capital
Assets, Net 6,862,850$   (268,366)$ 0$            6,594,484$    

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

 
Governmental Activities

General Government 15,393$        
Public Works 2,842            
Recreation and Culture 107,035        
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 125,270$      

Business-Type Activities
Water and Sewer 268,366$       

 
D. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 

 
Interfund Receivable and Payable balances as of June 30, 2020, were: 
 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Sewer Fund 2,167$                       
 
All remaining balances generally resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods 
and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the 
accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.  All interfund balances outstanding at June 
30, 2020, are expected to be repaid within one year. 
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Interfund Transfers for the year ended June 30, 2020, were: 
 

Fund Transferred To Funds Transferred From Amount
Nakwema Trailway Fund General Fund 15,000$                      

Police Protection Fund General Fund 2,000                          
General Fund Nonmajor Bayside Park Fund 15,454                        

Nakwema Trailway Fund Nonmajor Bayside Park Fund 5,000                          
Police Protection Fund Nonmajor Liquor Fund 22,914                        

60,368$                       
 
Transfers are used to: (1) move revenues from the fund that is required to collect them to the fund that is 
required or allowed to expend them; (2) move receipts restricted to or allowed for debt service from the 
funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due; and (3) use 
unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other 
funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.  
 

E. Long-Term Obligation 
 

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions of the Township for the year ended June 
30, 2020: 
 

GENERAL GENERAL TOTAL
OBLIGATION COMPENSATED OBLIGATION CONTRACT BOND LONG-TERM

BONDS ABSENCES BONDS PAYABLE PREMIUM OBLIGATIONS

Balance at July 1, 2019 810,000$           1,500$                316,061$            1,811$          22,144$        1,151,516$          
Additions 0                        0                         0                         0                   0                   0                          
Deletions (55,000)              (1,500)                 (103,401)             (1,811)          (7,382)           (169,094)             

Balance at June 30, 2020 755,000$           0$                       212,660$            0$                 14,762$        982,422$             

Due within one year 55,000$             0$                       105,402$            0$                 0$                 160,402$             

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

 
 
Obligations payable at June 30, 2020, is comprised of the following: 
 
General Obligation Bonds

Michigan Transportation Fund Limited Tax Bonds Bonds, Series 2015 (Governmental Activities)
$945,000 issued July 1, 2015, used to finance road improvement projects
within Holiday Hills Subdivision,  due in annual installments ranging from
$55,000 to $75,000 with interest of 0.65% to 3.50%; Date of maturity
is scheduled for Sepember 1, 2030. 755,000$           

2019 Traverse City Wastewater Treatment Plant - Upgrade Refunding (Business-Type Activities)
$316,061 issued in 2019, due in annual installments ranging from 
$105,402 to $107,258 with insterest of 2.36%. Date of maturity is
scheduled for April 2022. 212,660             

967,660$            
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The above business-type activities contractual obligations to Grand Traverse County (the "County") are 
the result of the County issuance of bonds on the Township's behalf. The Township has pledged 
substantially all revenue of the water and sewer fund, net of operating expenses, to repay the obligations; 
in addition, it has pledged to raise property taxes, to the extent permitted by law, if necessary to fund the 
obligation to repay the County. Proceeds from the County bonds provided financing for the construction 
of the sewer facilities and assets. All agreements provide for the Township to use, operate, and maintain 
the systems, at its own expense, subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement.  
 
The annual requirements to amortize these obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2020, including interest 
payments of $141,599 are as follows: 
 

Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2021 55,000$          20,637$                 75,637$          105,402$      5,019$             110,421$                 
2022 65,000            19,489                   84,489            107,258        2,531               109,789                   
2023 65,000            18,075                   83,075            0                   0                      0                              
2024 65,000            16,532                   81,532            0                   0                      0                              
2025 70,000            14,808                   84,808            0                   0                      0                              

2026-2030 360,000          43,195                   403,195          0                   0                      0                              
2031 75,000            1,313                     76,313            0                   0                      0                              
Total 755,000$        134,049$               889,049$        212,660$      7,550$             220,210$                 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

 
 
NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION 
 

A. Risk Management 
 
The Township is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions, 
employee injuries (workers’ compensation) as well as medical benefits provided to employees. 

 
The Township continues to carry commercial insurance for various risks of loss, including general 
liability, property and casualty, employee health and accident insurance, and workers' disability 
compensation.  The Township has had no settled claims resulting from these risks that exceeded its 
commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 

B. Retirement Plan/Deferred Compensation Plan 
 

The Township’s Section 457(B) Plan is a defined contribution pension plan that provides retirement 
benefits to all full-time employees and elected officials administered through Nationwide Insurance. 
Employees are eligible after having 12 months of employment with a minimum age of 21.  The Township 
contributes 10% of each eligible employee’s salary to the plan annually, while plan members can make 
voluntary contributions.  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Township contributed $21,735 to the plan, while employees made 
voluntary contributions of $4,944.  The Township board has the authority to amend or terminate the plan. 
There are no outstanding payables to the plan as of June 30, 2020.  
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C. Contingencies  
 

Grant Programs  
 
Under the terms of various federal and state grants and regulatory requirements, periodic audits are 
required, and certain cost may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the terms of the 
grants and requirements.  Such audits could lead to reimbursement of the grantor or regulatory agencies. 
However, management does not believe such disallowances, if any, would be material to the financial 
position of the Township. 
 
Septage Treatment Facility 
 
The Township is a participant in the Septage Treatment Facility. Being a participant requires the Township 
to contribute funding to the planning of a new facility. As of June 30, 2020, the total cost of the project 
has not been estimated and no expenditures have been made. 
 

D. Commitments 
 

Prior to June 30, 2020, the Township approved to spend resources on sewage and sanitary system 
improvements costing approximately $130,000.  
 

E. Subsequent Events 
 
After fiscal year-end, the Township approved the following: 
 

 Signs for the cemetery in the amount of $11,500 
 

 Township share of remodel and repairs for the Metro Emergency Services Authority in the amount 
of $75,000 

 
 Agreement with the Michigan Department of Natural Resources to develop and construct the 

Nakwema Trailway. Per the agreement, the estimated cost of the trailway is $983,400 of which 
the Township will be responsible for $75,000 with the difference coming from various state and 
local grants.  

 
No adjustments were made to the financial statements as a result of these subsequent events.  
 

F. Development Rights 
 
Development rights typically are donated through the gift of a conservation easement. The donation of a 
perpetual conservation easement which preserves the conservation values of a property deemed to be in 
the public benefit, such as prime agricultural land, scenic views, wetlands, forests, and unique wildlife 
habitats, is recognized in the Federal Tax Code and may result in substantial income and estate tax benefits 
to the donor/landowner.  
 
In situations where charitable tax benefits do not provide sufficient incentives, development rights are 
purchased rather than donated. This is often the case with farmland preservation programs. The amount 
paid to the landowner is determined by a "before and after" appraisal of the fair market value of the subject 
land. 
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G. Related Parties 
 
The Township Treasurer has part ownership in an assessing company that the Township contracts with 
for assessing services.  The Treasurer abstains from voting when the Board approves the assessing 
contract. During the fiscal year the Township paid $44,150 to the company for their assessing services.  

 
NOTE 5 – NEW ACCOUTNING STANDARD 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Township implemented GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities.  
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, was issued by 
the GASB in January 2017.  The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification 
of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be 
reported.  This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities for all state and local 
governments.  The focus on the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of 
the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists.  An activity meeting 
the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements.  Townships with activities 
meeting the criteria should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary 
net position.   

 
The restatement of the beginning of the year fund balances and net position is as follows: 

 
Net Position

Custodial
Funds

0$                        

Adjustment Related to Adoption of GASB Statement 84
Activities previously reported as fiduciary liabilities become fiduciary net position  5,600

5,600$                 

Net Position as of July 1, 2019, as previously stated

Net Position as of July 1, 2019, as restated  DRAFT



ORIGINAL 
BUDGET

FINAL 
BUDGET ACTUAL

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET

FINAL
 BUDGET ACTUAL

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET

FINAL 
BUDGET ACTUAL

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET

FINAL 
BUDGET ACTUAL

REVENUES
Property Taxes 364,610$     364,610$     377,975$      895,839$    895,839$    932,897$   260,779$     260,779$    258,024$     54,126$      54,126$       25,199$        
Licenses and Permits 87,900         87,900         88,750          0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Federal Grants 0                  0                  0                   0                 0                 0                0                  0                311,196      0                 0                  0                  
State Grants 388,364       388,364       387,212        0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Charges for Services 51,275         51,275         54,633          0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Interest and Rents 3,080           3,080           3,194            0                 0                 0                600              600             1,841          0                 0                  0                  
Other Revenues 30,200         30,200         33,279          0                 0                 0                2,000           2,000          0                 18,300        18,300         0                  

Total Revenues 925,429       925,429       945,043        895,839      895,839      932,897     263,379       263,379      571,061      72,426        72,426         25,199          

EXPENDITURES
General Government

Township Board 152,872       152,872       142,474        0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Supervisor 54,200         63,200         57,030          0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Election 14,250         14,250         11,242          0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Assessor 58,250         58,250         54,852          0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Clerk 92,019         92,019         88,420          0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Board of Review 1,016           1,016           550               0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Treasurer 76,302         76,302         73,059          0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Building and Grounds 98,210         98,210         86,220          0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  

Public Safety
Police 0                  0                  0                   0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 81,800        83,800         83,745          
Fire Protection 0                  0                  0                   778,000      822,341      822,341     0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Ambulance 0                  0                  0                   106,425      106,425      108,027     0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  

Public Works
Roads, Streets, and Bridges 5,000           5,000           5,964            0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Street Lighting 12,000         12,000         10,157          0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  

Community and Economic Development
Planning and Zoning 184,110       184,110       124,605        0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Farmland Preservation 0                  0                  0                   0                 0                 0                264,950       264,950      520,446      0                 0                  0                  

Recreation and Culture
Parks and Recreation 94,015         94,015         86,871          0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  

Capital Outlay 13,900         13,900         6,944            0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  
Contingency 65,000         56,000         0                   0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 0                 0                  0                  

Total Expenditures 921,144       921,144       748,388        884,425      928,766      930,368     264,950       264,950      520,446      81,800        83,800         83,745          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 4,285           4,285           196,655        11,414        (32,927)       2,529         (1,571)          (1,571)        50,615        (9,374)         (11,374)        (58,546)        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In (Out) 0                  454              (1,546)          0                 0                 0                0                  0                0                 9,500          22,914         24,914          

Net Change in Fund Balance 4,285           4,739           195,109        11,414        (32,927)       2,529         (1,571)          (1,571)        50,615        126             11,540         (33,632)        

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 1,484,528    1,484,528    1,484,528     61,643        61,643        61,643       1,011,809    1,011,809   1,011,809    33,714        33,714         33,714          

FUND BALANCE - End of Year 1,488,813$  1,489,267$  1,679,637$   73,057$      28,716$      64,172$     1,010,238$  1,010,238$ 1,062,424$  33,840$      45,254$       82$              

FARM LAND PRESERVATION FUND POLICE PROTECTION FUNDGENERAL FUND FIRE FUND

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
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SHORELINE BAYSIDE
CEMETERY LIQUOR PRESERVATION PARK PARK CAPITAL

FUND FUND FUND FUND PROJECT FUND TOTALS

Cash 15,649$             804$                1,387$                   14,647$      0$                          32,487$       
Accounts Receivable 500                    0                      0                            0                 0                            500              

TOTAL ASSETS 16,149$             804$                1,387$                   14,647$      0$                          32,987$       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 1,225$               0$                    0$                          0$               0$                          1,225$         

FUND BALANCE
Restricted for Specific Purposes 0                        804                  0                            0                 0                            804              
Committed for Specific Purposes 14,924               0                      1,387                     14,647        0                            30,958         

Total Fund Balance 14,924               804                  1,387                     14,647        0                            31,762         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE 16,149$             804$                1,387$                   14,647$      0$                          32,987$       

ASSETS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
CAPITAL 

PROJECTS FUND

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

JUNE 30, 2020
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SHORELINE BAYSIDE
CEMETERY LIQUOR PRESERVATION PARK PARK CAPITAL

FUND FUND FUND FUND PROJECT FUND TOTALS
REVENUES

State Grants 0$                    11,446$         0$                         0$                0$                         11,446$               
Charges for Services 6,275               0                    0                           0                  0                           6,275                   
Interest and Rents 0                      2                    3                           0                  0                           5                          
Other Revenues 0                      0                    0                           10,122         0                           10,122                 

Total Revenues 6,275               11,448           3                           10,122         0                           27,848                 

EXPENDITURES
Public Works 7,074               0                    0                           0                  0                           7,074                   
Recreation and Culture 0                      0                    0                           9,733           385                       10,118                 

Total Expenditures 7,074               0                    0                           9,733           385                       17,192                 

Excess of Revenues Over 
(Under) Expenditures (799)                11,448           3                           389              (385)                      10,656                 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In (Out) 0                      (22,914)         0                           0                  (20,454)                 (43,368)               

Net Change in Fund Balance (799)                (11,466)         3                           389              (20,839)                 (32,712)               

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 15,723             12,270           1,384                    14,258         20,839                  64,474                 

FUND BALANCE - End of Year 14,924$           804$              1,387$                  14,647$       0$                         31,762$               

CAPITAL 
PROJECTS FUND

ACME TOWNSHIP, GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY
WILLIAMSBURG, MICHIGAN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
 AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR FUND TYPES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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134 WEST HARRIS STREET CADILLAC, MICHIGAN 49601 PHONE: (231) 775-9789 FAX: (231) 775-9749 
www.bcbcpa.com 

 
 

October 7, 2020 
 
 

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE  
AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE AUDIT 

 
To the Township Board 
Acme Township 
Grand Traverse County 
Williamsburg, Michigan 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Acme Township for the year ended June 30, 
2020. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under 
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information 
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter 
to you dated September 9, 2020. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings  
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by Acme Township are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. During 
the fiscal year, Acme Township adopted GASB Statement No. 84 Fiduciary Activities, which requires 
changes to how the fiduciary fund is reported. An additional statement was added to the audit report in 
order to meet the requirements set forth by the new standard. The application of existing policies was not 
changed during 2019-2020.We noted no transactions entered into by Acme Township during the year for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the governmental activities and 
the business-type activities of Acme Township’s financial statements was: 
 

Management’s estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets is based on the 
length of time it is believed that those assets will provide some economic benefit in the 
future.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates in 
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. We detected various material misstatements as a result of our audit procedures that were 
corrected by management.  The material adjustments were a result of converting the entity’s records from 
cash basis to modified accrual basis of accounting and providing client assistance as the client knew the 
adjustment was necessary but requested our assistance. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit.   
 
Management Representations 
  
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October 7, 2020. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to Acme Township’s financial statements or a determination of the 
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require 
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To 
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues  
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Acme Township’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 
 
During the course of our audit of the basic financial statements of Acme Township for the year ended June 
30, 2020, we noted the following items which we feel deserve comment: 
 

Condition of Accounting Records 
We would like to thank the accounting personnel for their efforts in accumulating the information 
needed for our audit.  
 
Budgeting 
State law requires governments to amend its budget as soon as it becomes apparent that an overage 
will occur.  Various funds had expenditures that exceeded budgeted appropriations during the 

DRAFT



fiscal year.  We recommend the Township monitor the budgets closely and amend appropriations 
when appropriate. 

 
Capitalization Policy 
We were unable to locate the Township’s capitalization policy while performing the audit.  The 
Township is required to adopt a capitalization policy.  If the Township does not have a 
capitalization policy, the Board needs to adopt one and note it in the minutes.  A sample policy has 
been provided to the Township Clerk. 
 
Committed Fund Balances in the General Fund 
We recommend at least on an annual basis prior to June 30th, the Township evaluate what they 
have in committed funds for various projects, future planning, etc. within the General Fund’s total 
fund balance. It was noted during the audit that most of the committed fund balances in the General 
Fund have not changed in several years. 
 

Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the Management Discussion and Analysis and the Budgetary 
Comparison Schedule, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic 
financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing information for consistency with management’s responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the RSI.  

 
We were engaged to report on the Combining Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements, which accompany 
the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to out audit of the financial statements.  We compared and reconciled 
the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Township Board and management 
of Acme Township and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified 
parties.  
 

BAIRD, COTTER AND BISHOP, P.C. 
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS  
134 WEST HARRIS STREET CADILLAC, MICHIGAN 49601 PHONE: (231) 775-9789 FAX: (231) 775-9749 

www.bcbcpa.com 

October 7, 2020 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED  

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN  
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Township Board 
Acme Township 
Grand Traverse County 
Williamsburg, Michigan 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of Acme Township as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise Acme Township’s basic financial statements and have issued 
our report thereon dated October 7, 2020.   

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Acme Township’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Acme Township’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Acme Township’s internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.   

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
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exist that were not identified.  We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described below, that we 
consider to be a material weakness: 

 
1) Lack of Adequate Controls to Produce Full Disclosure GAAP Basis Financial Statements 

 
Criteria:  All Michigan governments are required to prepare financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  This is the responsibility 
of the government’s management.  The preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with GAAP requires internal controls over both (1) recording, processing, and summarizing 
accounting data (i.e., maintaining internal books and records), and (2) reporting government-
wide and fund financial statements, including related footnotes (i.e., external financial 
reporting). 
 
Condition:  As is the case with many smaller and medium-sized entities, the government has 
historically relied on its independent external auditor to assist in the preparation of the 
government-wide financial statements and footnotes as part of its external financial reporting 
process.  Accordingly, the government’s ability to prepare financial statements in accordance 
with GAAP is based, in part, on its reliance on its external auditors, who cannot by definition 
be considered a part of the government’s internal controls. 
 
Cause:  This condition was caused by the government’s decision that it is more cost effective 
to outsource the preparation of its financial statements to the auditors than to incur the time 
and expense of obtaining the necessary training and expertise required for the government to 
perform this task internally. 
 
Effect:  As a result of this condition, the government’s internal controls over the preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with GAAP are incomplete.  Instead, the government 
relies, in part, on its external auditors for assistance with this task. 
 
Recommendation:  Due to the size and minimal activity, we recommend that the government 
continue to outsource financial statement preparation. 
 
View of Responsible Officials:  The government has evaluated the cost vs. benefit of 
establishing internal controls over the preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
GAAP, and determined that it is in the best interests of the government to outsource this task 
to its external auditors, and to carefully review the draft financial statements and notes prior 
to approving them and accepting responsibility for their content and presentation. 
 
Corrective Action:  The Township has evaluated the cost vs. benefit of establishing internal 
controls over the preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP, and 
determined that it is in the best interest of the Township to outsource this task to its external 
auditors, and to carefully review the draft financial statements and notes prior to approving 
them and accepting responsibility for their content and presentation.  The persons responsible 
for the corrective action is the Township Board. Unless circumstances change, the Township 
Board will continue to rely on its external auditors and realizes this comment will be repeated 
in subsequent years. 

 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Acme Township’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
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effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Acme Township’s Response to Findings 
 
Acme Township’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described above. Acme Township’s 
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.   
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
BAIRD, COTTER AND BISHOP, P.C. 
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All 2020 HHW Events have
been completed

Great job residents of Grand Traverse County!  
Because of your efforts we were able to reuse, recycle or properly

dispose of
98,502 pounds of Household Hazardous Waste and almost 60,000
pounds of Scrap Tires at our special collection events in 2020.  

HHW Event Dates for 2021 
(Sign up will be available online approximately one month before

each event.)  Appointments are required

Thursday, April 15th

Thursday, May 13th

Thursday, June 17th

Thursday, August 12th

Thursday, September 16th

Saturday, October 16th

What Can I Bring to a Household Hazardous Waste Event? 
Click Here.

http://www.recyclesmart.info
http://recyclesmart.info/1162/Household-Hazardous-Waste
http://recyclesmart.info/1162/Household-Hazardous-Waste
http://recyclesmart.info/1213/Examples-of-Hazardous-Waste
https://grandtraverse.recycle.game/
https://mybarc.org/
https://recyclingraccoons.org/
http://www.recyclesmart.info/983/Take-It-Back-Recycling-Directory


$10 TV Recycling 

The Grand Traverse County
RecycleSmart program is happy to
announce that beginning October
1st, Bay Area Recycling for Charities
(BARC) will be accepting your old TVs
and Computer monitors, to be fully
recycled, for just $10 each.  This
program is for Grand Traverse County
Residents only and is limited to 1 TV
per household up to 500 TVs total. 
You must have proof of residency to
get this great deal.  For more
information call BARC at 231-632-2272
or visit their website here. 

Recycle right or lose it. 
Illegal dumping at the Recycling Sites in Grand
Traverse County will no longer be
tolerated.  Violators will be prosecuted.   
Please spread the word.  Items must never be
left on the ground. If the sites continue to be
misused, not only will the abusers be held
accountable but we run the risk of losing these
great assets to our community. 
To learn more about what can and can't be
recycled, please visit the link below. 

https://mybarc.org/
https://mybarc.org/


GUIDELINES AND EXCLUDED MATERIALS 

Recycling Drop-Off Site Closure
 
Due to the excessive misuse and illegal dumping
that has occurred at the Recycling Drop-off Site
located at 3770 Blair Townhall Rd. in Grawn, the
site has been permanently closed.  Read on....

The Keystone Brush Site is
now accepting Credit Cards as
a form of payment.     

Please note that the site is
closed on all major holidays
and for severe weather
conditions. 

Brush Site information and hours of operation can be
found by clicking here. 

https://americanwaste.org/recycling-guidelines
http://recyclesmart.info/CivicAlerts.aspx?AID=312
http://www.recyclesmart.info/905/Brush-Drop-Off-Site


Looking for the latest episodes of the
very popular 9&10 News TV series

"Talking Trash"? Look no further.  Click
this LINK and you will be whisked away

to the glorious land of responsible
recycling! 

Have questions about where to
recycle an item?

Click on the Take it Back Logo
and you will be magically
transported to the Take it Back
Directory!  
If you are unable to find a solution on the

https://www.9and10news.com/search/talking+trash


directory, please contact the Resource Recovery Department and we'll be sure to
help you out!

Smoke Alarm Drop Off Program
The GTC Resource Recovery Department and the
Grand Traverse Metro Fire Department have teamed
up to bring GTC residents a Smoke Alarm Drop Off
program.
You may now bring your old smoke alarms to either
the Grand Traverse Metro Fire Administration at 897
Parsons Rd. in Traverse City or the Grand Traverse
Metro Fire Station #11 at 3000 Albany Dr. in
Traverse City during their normal hours of
operation. 
The drop off containers are located just inside the
main entry doors.  It is recommended that smoke
alarms be tested monthly, the batteries replaced bi-
annually and whole units replaced every 10 years. 
Batteries can be brought to any of the 9 drop off
locations (listed below) around GTC.  Please
contact the Resource Recovery Department if
you have any questions.  

Drop Off Battery Recycling

Some sites may be closed or have altered hours at this
time. 

Thank you for understanding

BE SURE TO TAPE ALL YOUR BATTERY TERMINALS
(CLEAR MASKING TAPE PLEASE)

Batteries from Grand Traverse County residents are accepted at any of the battery drop off
locations. Batteries from commercial businesses or nonresidents are not
accepted. Businesses may bring batteries to the Household Hazardous Waste Collection
events.

Battery drop off boxes are at the following locations:

Building / Location Address

Acme Township Hall 6042 Acme Road
Williamsburg, MI 49690

Blair Township Hall 2121 County Road 633
Grawn, MI 49637 

City of Traverse City / Grand Traverse County Building 400 Boardman Avenue
Traverse City, MI 49684 

Civic Center 1213 W Civic Center Drive
Traverse City, MI 49686 

Fife Lake True Value 119 East Lake Street Fife
Lake, Mi. 49633

Grand Traverse County Public Service Building 2650 LaFranier Road
Traverse City, MI 49686 

Metro Emergency Services Building 897 Parson Road
Traverse City, MI 49686 

https://goo.gl/maps/GccGhzWu8e42
https://goo.gl/maps/f7Pfv1mTYVU2
https://www.google.com/maps/place/6042+Acme+Rd,+Williamsburg,+MI+49690/@44.7739832,-85.5002082,268m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x881fd1c27c1e0157:0xe8e4a1ea9025f67c!8m2!3d44.7739832!4d-85.4991777
https://goo.gl/maps/h75GCXnyHMm
https://www.google.com/maps/place/400+Boardman+Ave,+Traverse+City,+MI+49684/@44.7605642,-85.6187729,569m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x881e32a46a5eaf51:0x39151544b9ac8597!8m2!3d44.7605642!4d-85.6165842
https://www.google.com/maps/place/1213+W+Civic+Center+Dr,+Traverse+City,+MI+49686/@44.7632122,-85.5943261,569m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x881fcd577fcc9bdd:0x6a4b7e8a08022923!8m2!3d44.7632122!4d-85.5921374
https://goo.gl/maps/QG5uXs5wA3u
https://www.google.com/maps/place/2650+Lafranier+Rd,+Traverse+City,+MI+49686/@44.7248478,-85.6061906,570m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x881e332b6eb720fb:0x1ed815460dd8946!8m2!3d44.7248478!4d-85.6040019
https://www.google.com/maps/place/897+Parsons+Rd,+Traverse+City,+MI+49686/@44.7462277,-85.5630469,569m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x881fcd754f9323e7:0xb2d39f06f59001d7!8m2!3d44.7462277!4d-85.5608582


Traverse City Fire Department 500 W Front Street
Traverse City, MI 49684 

Whitewater Township Hall 5777 Vinton Road
Williamsburg, MI 49690

Watch this short video on battery recycling.

RecycleSmart is the Resource Recovery program of Grand Traverse County, Michigan
231-941-5555 | recyclesmart@grandtraverse.org | www.recyclesmart.info

https://www.google.com/maps/place/500+W+Front+St,+Traverse+City,+MI+49684/@44.764352,-85.6337117,569m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x881e329ce6485cd1:0x9658b8ae98275a9f!8m2!3d44.764352!4d-85.631523
https://www.google.com/maps/place/5777+Vinton+Rd,+Williamsburg,+MI+49690/@44.7696185,-85.400734,569m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x881fdad855d51dff:0x3423f1363e9da785!8m2!3d44.7696185!4d-85.3985453
https://youtu.be/STd4-YUg2x0
http://www.recyclesmart.info
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              ACME TOWNSHIP ADULT USE MARIHUANA  

COMMITTEE MEETING 

Remote Zoom Meeting  

  Wednesday, October 28, 2020 7:00 a.m. 
 

CALL TO ORDER WITH PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE at 7:10 a.m. 

 

ROLL CALL: Members present: D. White, A. Jenema, D. Hoxsie 

Staff present: J. Jocks, Legal Counsel (called in), L. Wolf, Planning & Zoning Administrator  

   

A. LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT: Open at 7:11 am 

 

Greg Klinger, Redbud Roots, thanked the committee for their attention to recreational marihuana use. 

 

Brian Kelley, Acme resident, voiced his concerns on processing marihuana in the agriculture district, 

he feels it should be an industrial use. He also felt there could be contamination from the discharge of 

wastewater from these operations into the ground water. Too many provision centers in the corridor, 

could dominate the look and change the tone of a small community.  

 

Tony Goff, Nature’s Releaf, thanked the committee for addressing the ordinance for recreational 

marihuana use. 

 

Public comment closed at 7:13 am 

 

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

Motion by Jenema to approve the agenda as presented, supported by Hoxsie.  Roll call motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

C. INQUIRY AS TO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: None 

 

D. CORRESPONDENCE:   

1.    Greg Klinger – MRA Municipal Guide 

         

E. OLD BUSINESS: None 

 

F. NEW BUSINESS: 

1.   Discussion and recommendation of adult use licenses: type, number, fees 

      Jenema informed there is a spreadsheet in the packet to summarize what there is with  

      medical marihuana facilities in the township and what the potential could be if allowed  

      in each district. 

 

For medical marihuana in Commercial there is 1 provision center, in A-1 processor 2 licenses out 

but not in operation,  B-4 provision center, 3 licenses out only one in operation, B-4 processor 3 

licenses 2 now have renewed and none in operation, B-4 Transporter 3 licenses 1 now renewed 

and none in operation. B-4 Safety Compliance 3 licenses only one renewed. 

 

White said they need to figure out for recreational how many of each category and classes of 

licenses to allow for the board to discuss.  

 

      Jenema reported there is different classes that limit the amounts of plants grown and what type of  

      space in a building is needed. She asked Redbud Roots to help clarify.  

 

                    Alex Leonowicz, Redbud Roots, said their first grow of 1,500 plants was in a space of roughly 

                    10,000 square feet with a medical license in Class C. The amount of plants for a medical  

                    license for each class is A 500, B 1000, and C 1500.  Recreational adult use for plants are A 100,  
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                     B 500, and C 2000. 

 

         Jenema asked if there were certain times when there is a stronger odor coming from the  

                     buildings when in use then other times. Alex said there is, carbon filters can be used to cut down  

                     the smell significantly but not all municipalities required this in their ordinance. In certain times 

                     like when it rains the smell can be stronger.  

 

         Jenema’s had concerns in the agriculture districts, she felt there should be additional setbacks 

                     because of the impact they could have.  

 

         Wolf said the amount for setbacks, filtration and screening would need to be in the zoning  

                      ordinance. 

 

         Jenema asked in the agriculture district what would be the things that would give owners a 

                     comfort level to have processors and growers of marihuana facilities in their district. White  

                     thought it would be the filtration and further setbacks.  

 

         Alex said the ventilation systems in the buildings run 24/7. There are stand-alone ones and 

                      independent H-back units with filters in them that move the air within the room.  

 

         Wolf said sounds and light requirements would need to be looked at too. 

 

         White wondered on the wastewater running off and asked Alex what amount of water they use 

                      when watering the plants.  

 

         Alex informed when watering plants it takes up to 500 to 1000 gallons a day for their Class C  

                     1500 plant operation. Most of the run-off water evaporates in the rooms creating moisture  

        that ultimately ends up in the sewer system. He would be surprised if someone open a cultivation 

                     facility without first looking at the water system. The first thing his company does when looking 

                     for a spot, is to look for a good water supply. It is most crucial for the plants.   

 

        Jenema said realistically a Class C grower would look for an area with water and sewer system,  

                    where potentially the smaller facilities with 100-500 plants could work with a septic system and  

                    well. Alex said a smaller facility could get away with that but not a larger one.  

 

        Jenema felt since there are two medical growers in the agriculture district, they could allow two  

                    for recreational and change the medical classes to match up with them. She contacted Jeff Jocks  

                    to call in to verify if they could restrict the licenses for classes A & B in the  

                    agricultural district or would they be opening themselves up to problems by modifying the 

                    already licensed medical. They could apply some restrictions on class A & B in the  

                    agriculture district with filtration, air and where the wastewater is going.  

 

        Wolf would like this as a special use instead of as a zoning ordinance site plan review. It would 

                    give the township more protection, the neighbors would have the opportunity to speak out their  

                    concerns at a public hearing and gives the board final authority for approval.  

      

        Jenema said with medical recreation licenses currently do not have these restrictions.  

 

        Jeff Jocks called in and Jenema asked if they could with a special use in the agriculture district  

                    allowed for two licenses for growers and two for processors in only Class A & B for recreational  

                    marihuana? Currently they allow Classes A, B & C for medical. Can they modify the medical to  

                    matched up with recreational even though licenses have already been issued?  Jocks said he  

                    didn’t see anything that would restrict or prevent the township from limiting a recreational  

                    grower to Class A or B licensing only in the Agriculture District. Because the medical licenses  

                    have been issued, he felt there could be trouble with restricting the current medical licenses from  

                    having Class C.  

 

       Jenema informed him because they have already issued the medical licenses, the zoning ordinance  
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                   currently does not even have a special use or site plan review for the growers on their filtration,  

                   air and wastewater which can cause issues. Can the township now have both medical and  

                   recreational go through a special use process before they actually open?  Even for the medical  

                   licenses that have been issued? Jocks will work on this with the committee.  

   

       Jenema said to verify their discussion, would be to have restrictions be for Class A & B in 

                   agriculture district with special use permit to cover any issues. She asked Alex as a processor  

                   what do they need as far as water and sewer? Does a processor use less than a grower? 

  

      Alex said with processing the water usage depends on the extraction method they use. There are  

      two ways to do it, butane propane or co2. Their facility is 2500 square feet which is large for 

      processing, the area doesn’t need to be this big. There is nothing different in the electrical draw,  

      just the butane propane which a lot of farmers already have so it is not foreign.   

 

     Jenema said she knew growing and processing are separate licenses but wondered if they could be  

     done by the same company, or if they needed to be in different facilities. 

 

     Alex said they do both at theirs, but some facilities do only either growing or processing. The  

     larger companies have both, those that are just getting into the business would go with just one to  

     start. They are totally different skill sets, facilities, and usages.  

 

     Jenema asked since he is also a grower, do they process other people’s plants too? Alex said  

     they take in from other growers and it doesn’t matter how the plant looks. You can process it to be 

     used for edibles, lotions, and vapor cartridges.  

  

       White asked if the growing and processing can be done in the same building? 

 

     Alex said there is an advantage to doing that. Michigan doesn’t require to have a secured  

     transporter if you are moving it from a grower to a processor. The building needs to be tried  

     together but does need to have separate entrances and exits. That is why a lot of companies are  

     doing it in the same space.  

 

     The committee agreed a special use in the agriculture would be needed.   

 

      Growers and processors in B-4 would be more regulated because they need water and  

      sewer.  

 

     The committee felt the Secure Transporters and Safety Compliance would not be an issue to allow.  

     The safety compliance is a testing facility. Jenema asked Alex do they test other products other  

     than marihuana?  

     

     Alex thought possibly except it could have the potential of contamination. There is very sensitive  

     testing standards for cannabis safety.  He explained they test per pound and have a transport fee.  

     The more testing they do the more beneficial it is. Everything that comes through needs to be  

     tested both from the grower and processing side.  

      

     The committee was comfortable with allowing three of each Transporter and Safety Compliances  

     in B-4 districts for licenses.  

       

     Jenema stated the provision centers was the most controversial with the board for recreational use.  

     Currently with medical, there is one allowed in the commercial district and three in B-4, with none  

     in agriculture or residential. She felt her comfort level would be to allow one in the commercial 

     district. The concern is there is a whole different system to follow when choosing for recreational  

     licenses than there was for medical. Jeff Jocks has given them requirements from the Department  

     of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Marihuana Regulatory Agency Marihuana Licenses. Jocks  

     will help write an ordinance that will work with the medical and not open the township up to  

     having them all along the commercial corridor.  
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    Alex informed the medical portion of their sales is 25% with many of their stores having both 

    medical and recreational use. Some cities and townships require to have a medical license for them  

    to get an adult use recreational one. This is to prevent someone coming in that doesn’t have  

    medical already to take one of the recreational licenses and creating additional marihuana facilities 

    in their towns.  

 

     White asked him to verify that people were not able to apply because it was in their ordinances.  

 

Alex told White he should check to be sure, but he thought that was the case. Traverse City 

allowed recreational licenses that were not medical and now they have numerous facilities of both 

around the area. 

 

Brian Chouinard, Natures Releaf, made a comment there is more traffic with recreational 

marihuana then with medical.   

 

Jenema said the board felt on the medical side there was a need in the community that it helped.  

 

The Committee agreed that a facility should have a medical license already when applying for a 

recreational one.  

 

Jenema wondered if the ones chosen for recreational, could be done by using a merit system by 

already being open for medical business and in good standing. 

 

Wolf said Jocks could do the police power ordinance and have a special use. She said there is a fee 

of $500 to apply for licenses. White felt that was low. Jenema suggested to figure out how many 

hours it took to work on the initial application and renewals and base the fee accordingly. They 

could then give those recommendations to the board.   

 

    The committee’s summary of recommendations to the board, was to have one recreational license 

    in commercial provision center using a site plan review with the criteria of filtration, water, and  

    sewer. Two A-1 Processors only in class A & B with special use permit and the criteria. With the 

    B-4 Provision Center, Hoxsie and Jenema agreed to allow three with White only one, all agreed  

    with a site plan review, criteria adding traffic concerns. B-4 Processor to allow three licenses with  

    site plan review and criteria. Transporter and Safety Compliance to allow three.  

 

    Cost of fees, White and Hoxsie recommended $5000 and $2000 and Jenema felt $3000 and $1500.  

    They all agreed to work with Jocks on establishing a merit base system and setbacks in the 

    zoning ordinance.  

 

G. PUBLIC COMMENT: Open at 9:10 am 

 

Brian Kelley, Acme resident, stated the calendar on the township website is not being updated with 

cancellations and new meetings. 

 

White informed Brian they are working on the problem and will have it corrected. 

 

ADJOURN:  Motion by Jenema to adjourn, supported by Hoxsie.  Roll call motion carried 

unanimously. Meeting adjourned at 9:12 am. 
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